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Agenda item 5.1

LEEDS AND YORK PARTNERSHIP NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Council of Governors
held on Wednesday 15 July 2015, in the Large Function Room,

St George’s Centre, Leeds LS1 3BR

PRESENT:

Frank Griffiths – Chair of the Trust

Public Governors Service User Governors
Philip Jones Claire Woodham (Lead Governor)
Richard Brown Becky Oxley

Niccola Swan Maria Trainer

James Morgan Ann Shuter
Andrew Marran
Jo Sharpe
Steve Howarth Staff Governors
David Smith Dominik Klinikowski

Gary Matfin
Ruth Grant
Heather Simpson

Carer Governors
Julia Raven Appointed Governors
Alan Procter Ant Hanlon

Colin Clark
Carol Ann Reed

IN ATTENDANCE:
Chris Butler, Chief Executive
Julie Tankard, Non-Executive Director
Margaret Sentamu, Non-executive Director
Steven Wrigley-Howe, Non-executive Director
Anthony Deery, Director of Nursing
Lynn Parkinson, Deputy Chief Operating Officer
Cath Hill, Head of Corporate Governance / Trust Board Secretary
Keisha Allen-Dowuona, Governance Officer (minutes)
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Action

15/043 Welcome and Introductions (agenda item 1)

The Chair opened the public session of the meeting at 14:30 and
welcomed everyone in particular, Mr David Smith noting that this
was his first Council meeting.

15/044 Apologies (agenda item 2)

Apologies were received from Laura Phipp (Service User governor
– York and North Yorkshire), Annie Dransfield (Carer governor –
Leeds), Jackie Ainsley-Stringer (Public governor – Leeds), Andy
Bottomley (Carer governor – Leeds), Andrew Johnson (Staff
Clinical governor – Leeds and York and North Yorkshire) and Cllr
Helen Douglas (appointed governor for the City of York Council).

15/045 Changes to any declaration of interests and declaration of any
conflicts of interest in respect of agenda Items (agenda item
3.1)

Mrs Hill presented a report which set out the annual declarations for
all governors noting that this paper built on the one presented to the
May meeting and now listed the declarations of interests for those
governors whose details were missing from the May report.

The Council considered the paper. Ms Reed requested that the
information in the report be amended to reflect that she is a board
member of Tenfold and an employee for Health for All. Subject to
this amendment, the Council received the annual declaration of
interests report.

The Council also noted that no governor present at the meeting had
declared any conflict of interest in any agenda item to be discussed.

CH

The Council received and noted the record of those interests
declared by governors as at the end of March 2015.

15/046 Opportunity to Receive Comments or Questions from Members
of the Public (agenda item 4)

There were no questions from members of the public.
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15/047 Minutes of the Public Meeting held on 21 May 2015 (agenda
item 5.1)

The minutes of the public Council of Governors’ meeting held on 21
May 2015 were agreed as an accurate record.

15/048 Matters arising (agenda item 6)

There were no matters arising from the minutes of the previous
meeting.

15/049 Cumulative actions – actions outstanding from previous
Council of Governors’ meetings (agenda item 7)

Mrs Hill presented the action log which showed those actions
agreed by the Council at previous meetings; those that had been
recently completed; and those that were still outstanding.

Mrs Hill drew attention to Log 76 which is an action arising from an
agenda item entitled, ‘Engaging with people who are not fully
represented.’ Mrs Hill advised that a paper relating to this had been
scheduled to come to this meeting but had been withdrawn pending
further discussions with the Chair and senior managers. Mrs Hill
advised that a report will be brought back to the Council in due
course and that Log 76 will remain open. This was noted by the
Council.

The Council of Governors noted the actions outstanding from
previous meetings and was assured of progress.

15/050 Chair’s Report (agenda item 8)

Mr Griffiths presented to the Council the Chair’s Report. He advised
the Council of some of the activities relating to the work of the Trust
he and members of the executive team had been involved in; in
particular meeting with representatives from the Leeds Clinical
Commissioning Groups and Leeds Community Health NHS Trust to
look at how organisations across the city might work together
differently in the future and better serve those who use our services.

Mr Griffiths noted that Mr Procter had raised a question (which had
been submitted prior to the meeting) regarding Leeds Citizens and
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the Trust’s involvement with this organisation noting that it linked to
the work he and the executive team had been undertaking with in
the city.

Mr Butler gave an update to the Council with regard to the work the
Trust is undertaking to engage with other organisations across the
city including Leeds Poverty Truth and Leeds Citizens. Mr Butler
noted that the Trust is keen to maximise the number of
opportunities it has to engage with communities and organisations
across the city in order to provide services in a different way to
benefit service users. Mr Butler also indicated that he, along with
other colleagues in the Trust had recently met with people from
ethnic minority groups to discuss how the Trust can meet the needs
of this underrepresented group.

Mr Griffiths drew the Council’s attention to his report in particular
changes to the Council of Governors’ membership and advised that
Mr Marran who had been on the Council since August 2007 will be
stepping down at the end of this meeting, and thanked Mr Marran
for all his hard work supporting the work of the Council.

Mr Griffiths also asked the Council to note the attendance of the
directors at Board of Directors’ meetings, in particular those
pertaining to the non-executive directors. He also indicated that he
was due to organise the governors’ appraisals and that his PA will
be contacting people for dates.

FG /
JWF

The Council received the Chair’s Report and noted the content.

15/051 Vale of York Clinical Commissioning Group Tender Process
Update (agenda item 9)

Mr Butler presented a report to the Council in respect of the
progress with the Vale of York Clinical Commissioning Group
tender process noting that the Trust had not been successful in its
bid and described the impact the loss of the contract will likely have
on service users and staff and assured the Council of the ongoing
work to ensure the safe transfer of services to Tees, Esk & Wear
Valleys NHS Foundation Trust (TEWV).

Mr Butler gave an update in respect of the Trust’s decision to
formally refer its concerns about the process in respect of the
tender to Monitor and outlined briefly the nature of these concerns;
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noting that the Council would be kept updated on the outcome of
the decision made by Monitor as to how it was to take forward the
Trust’s concerns.

The Council received the update and reflected on the potential
adverse impact the transfer of services would have on service users
and the staff working in York. It was, however, satisfied by the
assurance provided, on behalf of the Board of Directors, regarding
the safe transition of services and the nature of the complaint made
to Monitor in respect of the tender process.

The Council of Governors received the report and noted the
content.

15/052 Non-executive director presentation about performance
(agenda item 10.1)

Mr Wrigley-Howe presented the performance report to the Council.
He started by explaining some of his outside commitments and how
his knowledge of how other organisations work are drawn upon
when carrying out his role as a NED for the Trust.

Mr Wrigley-Howe then drew attention to the key areas of concern in
respect of performance on which he and the other non-executive
directors have held the Board to account, in particular safe staffing,
complaints, and serious incidents.

With regard to safe staffing Mr Wrigley-Howe reported that he was
concerned about the nature of the content of the report but assured
the Council, that the non-executive directors had challenged the
executives in respect of this matter and that they were aware of the
outcome of an audit which had been carried out in respect of the
data as presented. It was also noted by the Council that NHS
England were considering the format of the report going forward.
Mrs Swan asked if it would be possible to report against what the
Trust considers to be a safe level of staffing. Mr Marran noted that
the level of staffing can be affected by the acuity of service users
and noted the need for services to be confident they have the right
level to deal with this.

In terms of complaints Mr Wrigley-Howe noted that the report was
still being developed to ensure the Board has the right information
to assess not only the qualitative information, but more importantly
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the things that people compliant about. With regard to the number
of complaints he noted that a rise in complaints could be seen as a
positive thing as it indicates that people know how to make a
complaint, but that as a NED it is important to understand the
themes in order to understand the quality of services.

The Council discussed the report. With regard to complaints, it was
suggested that perhaps the reduction in the number of complaints
could be due to resources being put into the PALS service. It was
also suggested that it is likely that some service users may be
unwell even after being discharged, which may result in the delay in
making a complaint. The Council agreed there is still work to be
done regarding increasing service users’ awareness in respect of
how to make a complaint about the services provided by the Trust.

With regard to the serious incident report the Council expressed its
concern about the type of incidents which occur in particular the
number and types of deaths indicated in the report. Mr Griffiths
agreed that sometimes the descriptors used in the report could be
upsetting but that they reflect the reality of the level of un-wellness
of some people who use the service of the Trust.

The Council noted the incident regarding the loss of confidential
data. Mr Griffiths indicated that there is a trigger for when a loss is
notifiable and that any such incident is investigated fully within the
Trust. He also noted that Dr Isherwood is the Caldicott Guardian
overseeing the safety of data and information.

Ms Woodham asked about those incidents in the report were
service users had been under the care of the CMHT service, noting
that she had raised matter of a lack of CPNs in the CMHTs some
months ago, and asked whether there was a potential link between
this issue and the deaths. Mr Wrigley-Howe referred back to the
earlier discussion around safe staffing noting that there isn’t a
metric which measures safe levels in the community and that the
NEDs are sighted on this lack of information. He also linked the
matter of the provision of community services to the number of
beds required noting that a reduction in beds must be balanced with
the right provision of community services. It was noted that there is
currently a detailed piece of work being carried out in the Trust
around bed numbers and that the outcome of this will be brought
back to the Council in due course.

JC
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The Council of Governors received the report, noted its content
and confirmed that the information provided in the report provided
assurance that the Trust is compliant with all regulatory
requirements, contractual and local targets.

15/053 Final version of the Quality Report for 2014/15 (agenda item
10.2)

The Council of Governors received and noted the final version of
the Trust’s Quality Report for 2014/15.

15/054 Update on the implementation of improvements to the
psychology and psychotherapy services in York (agenda item
11)

Mrs Parkinson introduced a report which provided an update on the
implementation of improvements to the psychology and
psychotherapy services in York noting it specifically discussed the
service provided to meet the needs of people with personality
disorders.

Mrs Parkinson discussed how the current proposal set out in the
report has been developed; the outcome and responses to the
consultation process undertaken about the changes; the final model
for local personality disorder (PD) services and psychological
therapies provision; and an update on how this has progressed.

The Council was pleased with the update and thanked Mrs
Parkinson for the report.

The Council of Governors received and noted the progress
detailed in this paper.

15/055 New format for the performance report to the Council of
Governors (agenda item 12)
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The Council of Governors received and noted the information
regarding the new format for the performance report to the Council
of Governors, and noted that the new style report will be brought
back to the September meeting.

15/056 Draft minutes from the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee meeting held 17 June 2015 (agenda item 13)

The Council received the draft minutes for the Appointments and
Remuneration Committee and noted the items discussed and was
assured that the committee is working within its Terms of
Reference and of the progress with the individual areas of work.

15/057 Confirmation of the outcome of the elections to the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee (agenda item 13.1)

Mrs Hill informed the Council that following an election earlier in the
day Ms Oxley had been nominated and subsequently elected to the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee.

The Council noted that as part of the election process no appointed
governor had come forward to stand for election, but that outside of
that process Ms Reed had expressed a willingness to be on the
committee. The Council confirmed that it was happy for Ms Reed to
be a member of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee.

The Council noted and ratified the appointment of Ms Oxley and
Ms Reed to the Appointments and Remuneration Committee.

15/058 Representing the interests of members and the public (agenda
item 14)

The Council noted the report and in particular how governors can
get involved in the opportunities set out in the report for
engagement and to maximise opportunities to promote the work of
the organisation
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15/059 Update on the arrangements for the Annual Members’ Day
(agenda item 15)

The Council received and noted the arrangements for the Annual
Members’ Day; in particular the date and time of the event and also
noted that governors have been invited to be involved in the
arrangements for the day.

15/060 Changes to the Constitution (agenda item 16.1)

Mrs Hill presented the Trust’s Constitution to the Council and drew
its attention to the proposed changes in particular the inclusion of
Annex 10 around the Annual Members’ Meeting and also the
opportunity to use electronic voting in future elections.

The Council was advised that the proposed changes had been
approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting on 18 June 2015
and they were presented to the Council of Governors for its
approval also.

Mrs Hill advised the Council that the proposed changes to the
Constitution will be presented to members at the Annual Members’
Meeting but only where these changes affect the role of governors.
The Council considered the proposed changes to the Constitution
and approved them.

The Council of Governors noted and approved the proposed
changes to the Constitution.

15/061 Refreshed NED appointment procedure for ratification (agenda
item 16.2)

The Council of Governors received and ratified the proposed
changes to the Non-executive Director Appointment Procedure as
highlighted in the document.
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15/062 Ratification of the refreshed Terms of Reference for the
Council of Governors (agenda item 16.3)

The Council of Governors received and confirmed that the Terms
of Reference for the Council remained fit for purpose and correctly
described its role.

15/063 Ratification of the refreshed role description of the Lead
Governor (agenda item 16.4)

The Council approved the refreshed role description for the Lead
Governor.

15/064 Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors held 30 April
2015 (agenda item 17)

The Council received the minutes of the public meeting of the
Board of Directors and noted the content.

15/065 Audit Committee Annual Report 2014/15 (agenda item 18)

The Council received the 2014/15 Annual Report for the Audit
Committee and noted the content.

15/066 Dates of future meetings for 2016 (agenda item 19)

The Council noted the future meeting dates for Council meetings in
2016 and noted that venues will be advised once known.

15/067 Any other business (agenda item 20)

Mr Griffiths acknowledged that it was Mr Marran’s last day as a
governor of the Trust. The Council thanked him for his tremendous
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contribution to the work of the Trust and wished him well on his
future endeavours.

There were no other items of business.

15/068 Question / comments from Members of the Public (agenda item
21)

There were no questions from the public.

The chair of the meeting closed the public meeting of the Council of Governors of Leeds
and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust at 16:00 and thanked governors and

members of the public for their attendance.



12

COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS’ ACTION SUMMARY
(PUBLIC MEETING)

Meeting held 15 July 2015

MINUTE ACTION SUMMARY (PUBLIC MEETING) LEAD

15/045 Changes to any declaration of interests and
declaration of any conflicts of interest in respect of
agenda Items (agenda item 3.1)

The Council considered the paper. Ms Reed requested
that the information in the report be amended to reflect
that she is a board member of Tenfold and an employee
for Health for All. Subject to this amendment, the Council
received the annual declaration of interests report.

CH

15/050 Chair’s Report (agenda item 8)

Mr Griffiths also indicated that he was due to organise the
governors’ appraisals and that his PA will be contacting
people for dates.

FG /
JWF

15/052 Non-executive director presentation about
performance (agenda item 10.1)

It was noted that there is currently a detailed piece of work
being carried out in the Trust around bed numbers and
that the outcome of this will be brought back to the
Council in due course.

JC
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Information item:

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS

G1 People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives

G2 People experience safe care

G3 People have a positive experience of their care

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

SO1
We provide excellent quality, evidence
and promotes recovery and wellbeing

SO2 We work with partners and local communities to improve health and lives

SO3 We value and develop our workforce and those supporting us

SO4 We provide efficient and sustainable services

SO5 We govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements
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and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Council of Governors

Actions Outstanding from Public Meetings of
the Council of Governors

9 September 2015
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Cath Hill – Head of Corporate Governance

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS (please tick relevant box)

People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES (please tick relevant box)

We provide excellent quality, evidence-based, safe care that involves people
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value and develop our workforce and those supporting us

provide efficient and sustainable services

govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements

Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
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failure to complete actions is formally challenged. Accordingly,
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is asked to note the governance pathway for the action list;
received by the Council of Governors
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directors can review their actions ahead of the Council meeting with the

Summary (what we are talking about):
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Chief Executive maintaining an overview of the completion and progress

Please note that any action reported as being completed on the attached
e removed before the next meeting.
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Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):

Chief Executive maintaining an overview of the completion and progress

Please note that any action reported as being completed on the attached

Council meetings,
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Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):
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Cumulative Action Report for the Public Council of Governors’ Meeting
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76 15/010
(February
2015)

Engagement with people who are not fully represented (agenda
item 11)

The Council of Governors accepted the recommendations in the
report and noted that it is a still work in progress. Mr Griffiths added
that the report would come back to the Council to report on progress.

Andrew
Howorth

Date to come
back to the
Council of

Governors to
be advised

ONGOING

81 15/045 (July
2015)

Changes to any declaration of interests and declaration of any
conflicts of interest in respect of agenda Items (agenda item 3.1)

The Council considered the paper. Ms Reed requested that the
information in the report be amended to reflect that she is a board
member of Tenfold and an employee for Health for All. Subject to this
amendment, the Council received the annual declaration of interests
report.

Cath Hill Management
action to be

advised when
completed

COMPLETED

82 15/050 (July
2015)

Chair’s Report (agenda item 8)

Mr Griffiths also indicated that he was due to organise the governors’
appraisals and that his PA will be contacting people for dates.

Frank
Griffiths /

Julie Wortley-
Froggett

Management
action to be

advised when
completed
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83 15/052 (July
2015)

Non-executive director presentation about performance (agenda
item 10.1)

It was noted that there is currently a detailed piece of work being
carried out in the Trust around bed numbers and that the outcome of
this will be brought back to the Council in due course.

Jill Copeland Future
meeting of the

Council of
Governors – to
be advised of

the date
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Title: Changes to the membership of the Council of Governors
Contributor: Cath Hill
Status of item: Standing item (for information)

Since the last Council of Governors’ meeting there have been two changes to the Council.

With effect from 24 August 2015 Annie Dransfield has announced that she is stepping down as Carer
Governor. She has made this decision for personal reasons. The Council is also asked to note that with effect
from the 6 August Councillor Josie Jorosz is now our appointed governor for Leeds City Council.

On behalf of the Council I would like to thank Annie for her tireless support to mental health services in Leeds
and also to welcome Cllr Jorosz.

Title: Changes to the membership of the Board of Directors
Contributor: Cath Hill
Status of item: Standing item (for information)

There have been no changes to the Board of Directors since the last Council of Governors’ meeting.

Title: Attendance by directors at Board meetings
Contributor: Cath Hill
Status of item: Standing item (for information)

The Council of Governors is asked to note the attendance of directors at Board of Directors’ meetings, in
particular those pertaining to the non-executive directors. This information will also be provided in the Annual
Report.
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Non-executive directors

Frank Griffiths (Chair)      

Margaret Sentamu     - 

Julie Tankard   -  -

Gill Taylor  -    

Carl Thompson      

Keith Woodhouse      

Steven Wrigley-Howe   -   

Executive directors

Chris Butler    -   

Jill Copeland     -  

Dawn Hanwell       

Jim Isherwood  -     

Susan Tyler      

Anthony Deery   -    
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Title: Attendance by non-executive directors at Council of Governors’ meetings
Contributor: Cath Hill
Status of item: For information

The Council of Governors is asked to note the attendance of non-executive directors at Council of Governors’
meetings. This information will also be provided in the Annual Report.
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Non-executive directors

Frank Griffiths  

Margaret Sentamu * 

Julie Tankard - 

Gill Taylor  -

Carl Thompson - -

Keith Woodhouse  -

Steven Wrigley-Howe - *

* Indicates the NED who gave the presentation on the Board’s performance

Title: Chair’s communication to Monitor and the Secretary of State for Health
Contributor: Frank Griffiths
Status of item: For information

Governors are aware that on Monday 11 May we learned that we were not selected as the preferred provider
by the Vale of York Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to provide local mental health and learning disability
services in the Vale of York from 1 October 2015.

The Board has serious concerns about the procurement process that took place, including a clear conflict of
interest on the panel that assessed the bids, and it does not believe that another major upheaval of local
services in the Vale of York is in the best interests of patients and their families. In line with our duty to act in
the best interests of patients the Chief Executive on behalf of the Board referred this matter to the NHS
regulator Monitor.

Monitor looked at the complaint made by the Trust and in summary responded by saying that “We looked into
this complaint and it does appear that the commissioner could have done more to mitigate a conflict of
interest” but that “we have to use our resources in a way that has the greatest benefit for patients and having
looked at this complaint it doesn’t seem like there is much to gain for local patients by investigating formally”.

This decision was a deep disappointment to the Board. Chris Butler wrote to Monitor to express his concern at
the decision not to investigate; and in the light of the response from Monitor I also felt it a sufficiently serious
matter to write to the Chair of Monitor to express my dissatisfaction at the way in which the Trust’s concerns
have been handled.

In addition to the Trust’s concerns at the way in which the complaint has been handled by Monitor the Board
discussed the ongoing environmental risks that staff are having to manage and mitigate on the Bootham Park
Hospital site in order to keep service users safe. The Board was particularly concerned to note that NHS
Property Services are delaying the completion of the interim work again with a completion date now being
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December 2015; beyond the transfer of services to Tees Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust.

Given the Board’s concern at the nature of the ongoing risks to service users these delays are creating it was
agreed that I would write to the Secretary of State for Health (Jeremy Hunt) who has ultimate responsibility for
NHS Property Services (which is part of the Department of Health) to draw his attention to these risks with a
view to him directly influencing the pace at which the building work is taking place.

I have attached copies of both these letters for the Council’s attention and to assure governors that the Board
and its members are doing all they can to addresses these two separate and yet inextricably linked matters.

Title: Governor policy board update
Contributor: Cath Hill
Status of item: For information

As many of you will know, the former Foundation Trust Governors' Association joined NHS Providers at the
end of last year, bringing together all the work and support for governors into one organisation. They are really
keen that trusts and their governors influence their work and to this end established the governor policy
board. Earlier in the year trusts voted for the governors to sit on the policy board and in April the following
eight governors were elected to that Board:

• Frances Blunden, Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust (chair)
• Robert Alabaster, North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust
• Hummad Anwar, Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
• Sheila Barnes, Rotherham Doncaster and South Humber NHS Foundation Trust
• Diana Broughton, Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
• Geoffrey Carleton, Poole Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
• Peta Foxall, Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust
• Roy Underwood, Doncaster and Bassetlaw Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

In addition, two foundation trust chairs, Sue Davis from Birmingham and Solihull Mental Health NHS
Foundation Trust and Elisabeth Buggins from Birmingham Women’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust sit on the
policy board. Both are NHS Providers board members and so provide the link into the board. You can find out
more about these people on NHS Providers’ website http://www.nhsproviders.org/resource-library/governor-
policy-board-profiles/ and can also find details of their meetings also on the website with the following link
http://www.nhsproviders.org/members/governor-support/governor-policy-board-gpb/

Title: Governor Focus conference brings together governors from across the country
Contributor: Cath Hill
Status of item: For information

NHS Providers held their first national conference for governors in April with over 250 attendees. This will now
become an annual event with the next conference planned for April 2016. People heard about the role of
governors in person-centred care and the work of the Care Quality Commission. The keynote session drew
comparisons from the school governor model and we discussed the impact of the general election on governor
work. Notes and presentation from the day are available of their website at the following link
http://www.nhsproviders.org/events/governor-focus-2015/

Title: The NHS Five year forward view: a policy briefing for governors
Contributor: Cath Hill
Status of item: For information

The NHS Five year forward view (5YFV) sets the strategic framework within which the English NHS will operate
and develop in future years, and is designed to ensure its future sustainability while managing the demands of
an ageing population with changing healthcare needs.

It was jointly published in October 2014 by NHS England, the Care Quality Commission, Monitor, the NHS Trust
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Development Authority, Health Education England and Public Health England and has garnered widespread
support including, importantly, from the government.

It identifies three ‘gaps’ which the NHS needs to focus on for the benefit of patients and service users, which
cover three main areas: health and wellbeing; care and quality; and funding and efficiency. The 5YFV describes
a number of new care models intended to bridge these gaps and help local NHS organisations move towards
more integrated services for the benefit of their patient populations. A number of trusts are involved as
‘vanguards’ to pilot these new approaches. Further information on what the 5YFV means for trusts and
Councils of Governors is available on NHS providers’ website following this link
http://www.nhsproviders.org/resource-library/the-five-year-forward-view-a-briefing-for-governors/

Please note: any governor who does not have access to the internet and would like copies of
the information on the NHS Providers’ website please let Cath Hill know and she will provide
you with a hard copy.

Frank Griffiths,
Chair of the Trust
September 2015
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Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Council of Governors

Name of paper: Performance Report to the Council of
Governors

Date of the meeting: 9th September 2015

Person presenting the paper: Julie Tankard

Paper written by: Robert Mann, Assistant Director of Nursing

TYPE OF PAPER (please tick)

Strategic item:

Performance item: 

Governance item: 

Information item:

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS (please tick relevant box)

G1 People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives 

G2 People experience safe care 

G3 People have a positive experience of their care and support 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES (please tick relevant box)

SO1
We provide excellent quality, evidence-based, safe care that involves people
and promotes recovery and wellbeing

SO2 We work with partners and local communities to improve health and lives

SO3 We value and develop our workforce and those supporting us

SO4 We provide efficient and sustainable services

SO5 We govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements
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STATUS OF PAPER 

To be taken in the public session (Part A)

To be taken in private session (Part B)

If the paper is to be taken in the private session please indicate which criterion
is applicable:

Legal advice relating to legal proceedings (actual or possible)
Negotiations in respect of employee relations where they are of a
confidential nature
Procurement processes and contract negotiations
Information relating to identifiable individuals or groups of individuals

Matters exempt under the Freedom of Information Act (quote section
number)

This is the first report which has been prepared at the request of the
Council of Governors. The report provides a summary of performance
which has been taken from the Integrated Quality and Performance
Report for Quarter 1 2015 /16.

What this is about in detail:

The report contains a high level overview of Trust performance data for
Quarter 1 2015/16. Information is presented in line with the Care Quality
Commissions Key Lines of Enquiry and are headed under the following
headlines:-

 Safe
 Caring
 Effective
 Responsive
 Well-led.

Summary (what we are talking about):
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The Council of Governors are asked to:-

 Receive the report
 Provide comments on its content and format

Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):
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This report has been prepared at the request of the Council of Governors; it contains information from the Integrated Quality and Performance Report for

Quarter 1 2015 – 2016. This information is presented in line with the Care Quality Commissions Key Lines of Enquiry. The full versions of the reports remain

available to Governors on request.

Performance Headlines:

SAFE

 As a Trust we met the target of having contact with 95% of people who have been discharged within 7 days. We did not perform as well this

quarter as we did in the last 3 months. This is because we did not achieve our target in our York services.

 We are looking at the way we record Crisis Plans – This information will be available for Quarter 2

 No-one developed a Healthcare Acquired Infection in our Care.

 More than 95% of people who use our services experience harm free care according to the NHS Safety Thermometer. For quarter 1 we achieved

97.4%. This was lower than the previous quarter.

 We look at how many nurses and support workers we actually have on duty on our wards, and how many we planned to have on duty. In the

first quarter of this year only 3 wards were within +/- 20% of their planned staffing. There is more information about this on page 4

CARING

 We should have less than 7.5% of people staying in hospital if they are well enough to leave. For quarter 1 we achieved 1.6%, this is the same as

the previous quarter.

 We need to check that coming into hospital is the right thing for a person who needs our help before we admit them. This happened for 99.4% of

the people we saw.

 People’s plan of care should be up to date and we should review them within 12 months for 95% of people. 95.4% of people had their Care Plan

reviewed within the planned timescales
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EFFECTIVE

 We use clustering in mental health services to support people to get the right care. 75% of clusters should be reviewed within the agreed times.

We are not doing this as well as we should, and only 68.5% met the agreed review periods.

RESPONSIVE

 We should provide training to or staff so that they are able to respond to people who need to access our services but also use alcohol or other

substances, or who are on the autistic spectrum. We have done better than our training plan against both these areas

 We should listen to the stories people tell us about their experiences with us, and respond to them.

WELL-LED

 We should provide our staff with an appraisal every year. At least 90% of our staff should have an in-date Appraisal. Only 85.1% had an appraisal,

but care services achieved 90.1%

 We should support our staff to complete the training which our Trust says is compulsory. At least 90% of our staff should be up to date with all

their Compulsory Training.

 It is good for a large organisation to have movement amongst its staff. Our turnover should be less than 15%. Our turnover was 13.8%, but it was

higher in Corporate services at 20.6%

 We should support our staff with health and well-being. Our sickness absence rate should be less than 4.2%. Our sickness / absence rate was

5.2%, but this was much lower in Corporate Services, where the sickness absence rate was 3.4%
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Are Our Services Safe?

We Know that people are less likely to
experience harm if they are contacted within 1

week of Discharge

In the last 3 months we saw 95.6% of people
within 7 days of their Discharge.

This figure is Worse than the previous 3 months

We know that people who have a crisis at home
need a plan to support them through this.

The information on Crisis Plans will be available in
Quarter 2

We know we need enough nurses on our Wards
to support people and help them stay safe

33 wards did not have their planned nursing staff
on duty in the last report. This is worse than the
last report.

There is additional information on the next page.

We know that people should not get an infection
while in our care.

NO people got an infection in the last 3 months.
This is Better than the last report.

We know that some of the harm people
experience in our care can be avoided.

In the last 3 months people who came into
contact with our services experienced

97.4% Harm FREE Care
This figure is Worse than the previous 3 months

We know that some harms are preventable and
should NEVER Happen

We had No Never Events in the last three months.

This is the Same as the previous 3 months

90.2

92.2

94.2

96.2

98.2

% 0f People Seen

Seen in 7 Days

Seen in 7 Days 90
92
94
96
98

100

Crisis
plan in
24 hrs

Crisis Plan

Crisis Plan

8%

92%

Safer Staffing

Met Target

Did not
meet Target
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Are Our Services Safe?

More about Safer Staffing:

There were lots of reasons why 33 of our wards had either more or less staffing than they planned in this reporting period.

 Our wards have been very busy over the last 3 months, from the full exception report it is clear that:

o We have had more people in hospital, and our bed occupancy has been very high

o The people in hospital have needed a lot of support and increased observations and engagement

o We have had more people formally admitted to hospital under the Mental Health Act

 We have approximately 245 vacancies for nurses and support workers on our wards

 Some wards have had to use additional staffing to support service users to access and stay in other hospitals for physical healthcare

needs.

 We are actively working to improve our recruitment processes

 We have introduced quality initiatives including a Talent Management Programme and an improved Preceptorship Package for new

registered nurses. These inititves are to make us more attractive as a place to work for care staff.
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Are Our Services Caring?

We Know that people should not stay in
hospital when they are well enough to leave

This is the same as the last three months

We know that we should think about other
options for care before admitting people to

Hospital

This is the Worse as the last three months

We know that we should review peoples
care plans to make sure that they get the

right care for them.

This is the Worse as the last three months

Are Our Services Effective?

For Mental Health Clustering to be meaningful we should review the cluster

This is Better than the last three months

99.4%
95.4%

1.6%

68.5%
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Are Our Services Responsive?

We have trained at our Staff to be aware of the needs of people who
access our Mental Health Services who also use substances or alcohol.

We have trained our staff to be aware of the needs of people
who access mental health services who are also on the Autistic

Spectrum

.

Training Target % Achieved %

Series1 57.5 61.5

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

Dual Diagnosis Training

Training Target % Achieved %

Series1 57.5 66.3

52

54

56

58

60

62

64

66

68

Awareness of Autistic Spectrum
Disorder
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We Respond to the Stories of the People Who Use Our Services

Source: Patient Opinion

Thank you very much for the lovely feedback you have

given to our PD Network in Leeds. All of the staff work very

hard to provide good care for all that use our services and

I’m really pleased you found your time with the service so

helpful. I will pass on your positive comments to all the

staff concerned.
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We Respond to the Stories of the People Who Use Our Services

Source: Patient Opinion

The CPN I saw at Aire Court is trying to say I'm not
depressed because I find it hard to put things into words.

The CPN has not done a care plan, will not let a
psychiatrists and will not tell my doctor to give me any
med's.

I have a moderate learning difficulty and find it hard to put
things into words.

I hear voices and feel like Aire Court is not taking meThank-you for taking the time to write, I am sorry that

this was your experience when using services at Aire

Court. I would be pleased to speak with you about your

concerns to find out some more information so that we

could address these.

I would like to assure you that we do take all concerns

seriously and that I would like to work with you to

resolve them.
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Are Our Services Well-Led?

Compliance Area Target Achieved Comment

Appraisal 90% 85.1% This is Better than the last 3 months.
Care Services have achieved 90.1%

Compulsory Training 90% 83.5% This is Better than the last 3 months.

Staff Turnover Less than 15% 13.8% This is Better than the last 3 months.
Turnover amongst corporate staff is at 20.6%

Sickness and Absence Less than 4.2% 5.2% This is Worse than the last 3 months.
Corporate Services have achieved 3.4 %
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How Are Our Services Doing?

Safe

Caring

Effective

Responsive

Well Led

67%

13%

20%

Distribution of RAG Rating

Green Amber Red
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Patient Experience

1. Introduction

This is the second Patient Experience report, describing the various means by which

we receive feedback from people who use our services. The purpose of bringing this

together in one report is to provide a better understanding of the patient experience,

so that we can seek to improve our services. These sources of feedback are:

 Complaints and Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS);

 Feedback gained through involvement and engagement work;

 Postings on Patient Opinion and NHS Choices websites;

 The national service user surveys

 Friends and Family Test;

 Patient Related Experience Measure (PREM).

 Sign up to safety

 Healthwatch

 Themes that are highlighted in the Staff Friends and Family Test

2. Bringing feedback together

Each of the above sources of feedback provides valuable opportunities for us to

learn and improve our services. We need to respond to each item of feedback on an

individual level; but also to consider feedback together in analysing trends and

themes, planning service developments and reporting our performance publicly. The

Patient Experience Team work closely with operational managers and clinical leads

to ensure that services have a direct understanding of feedback relating to their

specific areas; as well as ensuring that best practice and learning is shared across

the Trust.

2.1 Complaints and PALS

Following the Care Quality Committee inspection we have overhauled both the

Complaints and PALS teams and supporting procedures. We have raised the profile

of the services and have commenced a trust wide programme of training for people

who are working as investigators or are interested in becoming investigators. This

training is being very positively received and well evaluated.

Looking at the trends and themes of Complaints and PALS, the three main areas of

concern are: aspects of clinical care; attitudes of staff; and delays in admissions.
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These themes are also reflected in other areas of feedback. Action plans are in place

and are described more fully in the Complaints, Litigation, Incidents and PALS

(CLIP) report.

Feedback from complainants is actively pursued and each response letter is

accompanied by a feedback form, with a self-addressed envelope. The format of the

complaints feedback questionnaire has been revised in line with national best

practice; however during Quarter 1 2015/16 only two responses were received.

Improving feedback is a key early priority for the new PALS & Complaints Manager

and we plan to explore alternative means of seeking feedback.

In Quarter 1 2015/16, we received 60 complaints, compared to 45 in Quarter 1
2014/15. This equates to a 33% increase in complaints received in this period, when
compared to last year. This may reflect our work to increase awareness of how to
provide feedback, including through the complaints procedure. Information about
how to raise a complaint is now displayed in all clinical areas. In addition we have
worked with clinical services to ensure that staff understand that all complaints must
be dealt with through the formal process, to ensure that we learn from this valuable
source of feedback.

We aim to continuously improve our approach to organisational learning; and are

now focusing on how to demonstrate that actions taken have had the desired effect

and have fully addressed the problem identified. An example of a complaint making

a difference can be seen from the following summary:

A particularly complex complaint was made by a service user who was

extremely unhappy with his care and treatment within the Gender Identity

Service. The complainant felt that his assessment had been unfair and

had led to safeguarding concerns being raised in relation to him, which

culminated in him losing his job. A thorough investigation included

interviews with staff and review of the clinical assessments which had

been undertaken. The investigator was able to gain a full understanding

of the issues and produced a detailed report, which he then went through

with the complainant and the clinical team. This meant that not only was

the complainant in a better position to understand the original outcome of

the assessment, but that both he and the clinical team were able to

consider a re-assessment. The clinical team understood that if the

assessment had been handled differently the outcomes may not have had

such serious implications, and so clarification of issues must always be

explored. The complainant took time to consider all the details of the

findings from the investigation, and was grateful for the detailed response.

As a direct result he has now agreed to fully re-engage with Trust services.

Our next area for focused improvement is to routinely seek personal feedback from

complainants, sometime after their complaint response has been issued, to
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understand whether the actions that we have taken in response to their complaint

have resulted in the outcome we expected. This will support real and sustainable

improvements in services as a direct result of service user feedback, including

complaints. We will report more of these personal stories to our Board of Directors.

A Customer Service Training workshop has been booked with the National

Performance Advisory Group, for mid-September, with a view to rolling it out in-

house after that, as part of the response to the “staff attitude” issue.

The PALS team has enjoyed supporting the roles of two social work students on

placement from January to July and has agreed to repeat this next year. This has

helped to increase PALS capacity.

When an issue is raised with PALS the team work directly with clinical services to

attempt to find a resolution or way forward that is acceptable to everyone. This often

prevents issues from turning into formal complaints, and in in the best interest of all

concerned. Main themes and trends reflect the concerns that are often raised as via

channels of feedback, i.e. delayed admission, staff attitudes and concerns around

patient care.

Significant progress has been made in the governance and quality assurance of

complaints responses; and there is now much closer working between the central

complaints team and Care Services.

2.2 Feedback through Involvement and Engagement work and the Service

User Networks.

The Service User networks are a key part of our Involvement and engagement work,

and groups in both York and Leeds are very positive arenas for seeking feedback

from people who use our services. One significant concern which we are seeking to

address is that where services do make changes as a result of involving people, we

seldom provide them with feedback about the changes and improvements we have

made as a result of their involvement.

Over the last few months people using our services have been involved in the re-

establishing of a City wide Hearing Voices Group, the Dementia Awareness week,

Involvement work around independent advocacy, and around social prescribing in

South and East Leeds.

A good number of people with lived experience have been involved in the

LYPFT/ASC Integration project, and have raised themes around access to services,

the still constant need to assess and re-tell stories, and the difficulty of accessing

alternatives to more traditional forms of treatment, particularly for more specialist

groups such as older people, complex needs, or those with a diagnosis of

personality disorder.
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The Involvement, Engagement and Membership team have a programme of public

events throughout the year. The ‘Building your Trust’ model provides the

organisation with an opportunity to consult with people using Trust services, and

ensure that we seek people’s views about proposed service improvement and

development. This will come together at the Trust Annual Members Day on 22nd

September at the Barbican York, when we shall bring together all the partnerships

that have been forged over the length of the campaign.

Concern is still expressed about how both our operational services and our

Governors engage with those groups who are traditionally hard to reach. A group led

by the Chairman of the Trust is currently meeting to ensure that we are using every

possible opportunity and being creative in how we engage with these groups and

respond to their feedback.

2.3 Patient Opinion and NHS Choices

We continue to receive postings on these two on-line sites. People are able to post
anonymously any feedback regarding their experiences of using our services.

From their inception we have taken a very personal approach to the way in which we

respond, avoiding any corporate sounding responses. Where appropriate the Head

of Patient Experience will contact the clinical service mentioned, and ask for a

response before replying. The majority of postings on these sites are negative.

We have received 21 postings in the last 6 months on Patient Opinion, six of which

were positive and 12 expressing concerns. The themes again reflect those raised

via complaints and PALs. Main themes have covered staff attitudes, feelings of not

getting the help needed, or not being fully understood. There were a number of

postings under different names that were very critical of one specific service, where

we are aware there is a persistent complainant who is currently being supported by

the clinical services manager. The clinical services are always sighted on these

postings and contribute to the response.

2.4 National Service User Surveys

The National Service User Surveys have been in place since 2003. There are two

different surveys: one for people using our community based services (this is a

mandated survey); the other for people who have used in-patient services (this has

been voluntary since 2010). The survey questions are set nationally by NHS

Surveys and the Picker Institute. We employ a company called Quality Health to

deliver the survey on our behalf.

The community survey is sent to a random sample of 1,200 service users; following

a promotional campaign encouraging people to complete the survey, our response

rate has remained at 30% this year (the National average is 29%), but again falls

short of the 40% national target set by NHS Surveys. Our response rate puts us in
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the middle segment along with 20 other Trusts. Only one Trust achieved the top

segment by achieving the national target.

Whilst the figures are still under embargo for sharing publicly, we are able to identify

a number of areas for concern and action. These areas are categorised as;

 Co-production

 Crisis care

 The triangle of care / involving carers

 Offering support for other areas of life.

A brief paper will be sent to the Executive Team meeting, followed by a discussion

paper for Care Services, allowing appropriate actions to be agreed.

The 2015 in-patient survey is still being carried out and the results for this will be

circulated later in the year.

2.5 The Friends and Family Test (FFT)

The Friends and Family Test continues to produce tiny amounts of data each month.

Typical responses have been very positive, for example:

 All good.
 Getting [name removed] back to good health, we know it will take a while but

he is improving nicely.
 They have been there for me. Polite and understanding.
 The staff are extremely compassionate. They go up and beyond their duty of

care.
 The clients come first and the staff actively encourage the clients to get

involved in all decision making.
 It's changed my life and given me structure and support.
 Diagnosed quickly by friendly, understanding, professionals.
 Given sound advice and encouragement towards managing and improving

my debilitating condition.
 Friendly, informative.
 I always felt I had the support I needed and was able to speak to someone

who understood what I was going through.
 One to one interview with OCT. Supported well in understanding condition

and developing strategies to manage.
 All of the issues I had were dealt with and plans were put in place to deal

with them should they arise in the future.
 Friendly, knowledgeable staff. Regular appointments. Excellent support.

86% of those who returned the questionnaire would recommend us to their friends or

family. Whilst these figures are encouraging, the FFT is anonymous and the

questions may not be changed; therefore we are not able to further explore the

issues behind those who replied in the negative.
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The FFT questionnaire is offered to everyone on discharge, transfer or after a six-

monthly assessment. The results are reported to NHS England and posted on the

Trust website; and we are also able to drill down to the results from individual

services and wards. This information is also posted monthly on Staffnet.

2.6 The Patient Reported Experience Measure (PREM)

The FFT is delivered as part of our wider Patient Related Experience Measure

(PREM).

The PREM is captured via the Your Views survey, a single satisfaction survey that is

used across the Trust. Prior to its development, different wards and services had

adopted a range of different surveys with no consistency across the Trust and

therefore no means of understanding themes and trends or of measuring

improvement.

The results to date show that;

94% feel that their views were taken into account when planning their care.

61% said they had received a copy of their care plan.

96% felt the staff had treated them with dignity and respect.

92% said they had been helped to achieve their goals.

93% said that they always felt safe in our care.

95% felt they were listened to by our staff.

93% felt genuinely cared for by us.

Feedback from the PREM tends to be more favourable to feedback via the national

surveys.

2.6 Themes from staff Friends and Family Test results

The results for the staff FFT mirror the national trends. 66% of those who replied to

the test would recommend our Trust to their friends and family for treatment (the

national average is 67%) and 52% would recommend our Trust as a place of

employment (the national average is 54%. Of the very small number of negative

comments fed back there are a number of issues raised which include:

 “… Because pressures on staff are so much higher these days - CMHT staff

spend a lot of time working in their own time to keep their heads above water

re admin.”

 Lack of regard for staff, not being valued, lack of vision by managers, poor

communication, management not listening, lack of understanding of difficulties
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staff are faced with, uncertainty about roles, lack of genuine consultation with

staff

These comments are in the minority, but do support what staff have told us when we

have raised with them that staff attitude is one of the main causes for complaints.

3. Sign up to safety

The Trust’s Board of Directors has signed up to the Sign up to Safety campaign,

which has the ambition of halving avoidable harm in the NHS over the next three

years. The campaign sets out five pledges for action; the second and third pledges

link directly with the work of the Patient Experience Team:

Pledge 2 Continually learn. Make the organisation more resilient to
risks by acting on feedback from patients and by
consistently measuring and monitoring how safe services
are.

Actions in place

 The Trust will seek simple but routine feedback from
all patients, carers and family on exit from care to
better understand what was good or could have been
done better.

This is via the Patient related
Experience Measure and feeds
into the Trust strategy

Pledge 3 Honesty. Be transparent with people about the progress to
tackle patient safety issues and support staff to be candid
with patients and their families if something goes wrong.

Actions in place

 The Trust will cascade training to improve
communication skills for staff who need to apologise
and explain to patients and their carers what has gone
wrong and why.

 The Trust will publish safety and quality indicators
including;

o The friends and family test, patient & staff
surveys, participation in the National
Confidential Inquiries

o Significant National and local clinical audits
o Patient Reported Outcome Measures
o The Trust will publish themed data from

complaints, incidents, claims and other
relevant information and associated action
plans in Public Board papers and on its
website.

Complaints training is being
carried out for staff on a monthly
roll-out and customer service
workshops are now planned for
the Autumn

The quality pages are now on
the Trust website

The lessons learned report,
Complaints report and
Performance report capture this
information and are presented
to the Board and to the Council
of Governors.

4. HealthWatch ‘Enter and View’

In February and March this year we had ‘Enter and View’ visits from HealthWatch

Leeds to our Becklin Centre wards. They raised a number of issues that concerned

them after speaking with people on our wards. An action plan has been put together

to address these concerns which are summed up as follows;

4.1 Staffing

There were concerns expressed by people who use our services around staff time

and availability and the over use of agency staff. Our aim is to ensure that staff are
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available to respond to the needs of people in a timely manner. It is a challenge to

achieve this and we are keen to look at a variety of ways to ensure this. One of the

things we are concerned about is the time taken up with ensuring that the clinical

records are completed to support and prescribe the care that is delivered. We are

addressing this by reviewing our documentation standards to streamline our

processes which would then release more time for staff to spend with people. With

regards to the use of agency staff, unfortunately this is a national issue however we

do monitor usage and are reviewing our recruitment strategy to ensure that our

number of vacancies remain at a minimum.

4.2 Therapeutic Activities

People highlighted a lack of therapeutic activities available during evenings and

weekends and that planned activities were regularly cancelled. We have appointed a

Clinical Lead Occupational Therapist for the Inpatient Services and are reviewing the

current model that is in place across the Acute Inpatient Services. The plan is to

work with the Occupational therapy and Healthy living service in order to promote

activities for people to increase the activities which are of interest.

4.3 Safety and Security

Issues were raised about people not being able to lock their rooms and that missing

keys may not be replaced. In our response we confirmed that people are provided

with a room key to lock their rooms from the outside. Unfortunately some people do

misplace their keys and there can be a delay in the provision of a replacement. Until

a replacement key is provided staff will open and lock bedrooms upon request.

Wards are also in the process of implementing a system that will ensure a spare is

available at all times. There were also concerns about the use of alcohol and illicit

substances at the Becklin Centre. A ‘zero tolerance’ approach to alcohol and illicit

substances is taken and a monthly meeting with the police liaison officer addresses

this

The Acute Inpatient Service has chosen to implement SafeWards which is a model

or approach to care that positively impacts upon the behaviours of both our patients

and staff with the goal of making our wards safer places to be.

4.4 Involvement in Care

We aim to involve people who use our services in all aspects of their care but

following the report from HealthWatch a programme has been put in place to

improve this .All wards have weekly ‘Your Views’ meetings which provide a forum to

encourage and inform people of the ways in which they can get involved. There is a

standard of offering everybody a copy of their care plan and this is monitored to

check that it is taking place routinely.

A patient forum meeting is being explored as a possibility of introducing further

opportunities for involvement and any actions from this group will be taken forward.
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4.5 Food

There was a wide range of comments about the food provided, some of which were

positive. The menu was approved by a Trust dietician a little while ago, to ensure

that the food we are providing is healthy and varied. The menu is planned on a 3

weekly cycle which supports the relatively short length of stay of most people. All

meals provided are suitable for diabetics. There are, however, areas that could be

improved upon, including providing the catering manager with direct feedback and a

wider use of the menu book which details the alternative menu selections. We aim

to work with the support services manager and our provider in order to look at

continued ways of improvement.

Progress against the action plan will be fed back to Healthwatch in the autumn.

5. Sharing learning from feedback

The Head of Patient Experience has attended Clinical Governance Councils to share

some of the themes and trends from feedback. Workshops are arranged with the

care groups following the publication of the Service User Surveys. A discussion is

taking place regarding how to share this information with the Council of Governors in

a more meaningful fashion. The information, which is now triangulated, will provide

evidence to share with clinical services via the Care Services Strategic Management

Group to highlight areas of potential improvement.

6. Recommendations

The Quality Committee is asked to consider the contents of this paper; and to

confirm that it supports work undertaken to date and is assured that progress is

being made.
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1 Purpose

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Board with

that are subsequently categorised

2 Executive Summary

The paper details the following information:

 TABLE 1 – Breakdown of Serious Untoward Incidents

May and June 2015

TABLE 2 – Overview of

2015

 TABLE 3 – Number of Final reports of

System) incidents submitted to TIRG

 TABLE 4 – Schedule of cases to be presented to Trust Incident Review Group

3 Background

The following table shows a brief flow of action

the Trust Incident Review Group

All incidents that are agreed as Serious Untoward Incidents and STEIS reported are

presented at TIRG.

Following review of the fact find information

required even though the incident is not STEIS reported. In these cases the

presented to TIRG at the discretion of the Directorate and TIRG Chair.

Final Report to the Trust Incident Review Group

The report is submitted to TIRG within 45 working days. Once agreed the report is sent to
Commissioning Group f

Incident agreed as Serious Untoward Incident

Incident is reported via STEIS and a full Root Cause Analysis Investigation is commenced.

Risk Management reviews the information on the fact find and agrees the level of investigation with the Deputy
Director of Care Services and Deputy Director of Nursing/Head of Clinical Governance.

Incident Occurs

Due to the severity rating /type of incident a Fact Find report is completed.

paper is to provide the Board with information relating

categorised as Serious Untoward Incidents (SUI)

The paper details the following information:

Breakdown of Serious Untoward Incidents –

2015

Overview of Serious Untoward Incidents by Directorate

Number of Final reports of STEIS (Strategic Executive Information

incidents submitted to TIRG within 12 week

Schedule of cases to be presented to Trust Incident Review Group

The following table shows a brief flow of action: from incident occurring to presentation at

the Trust Incident Review Group (TIRG).

that are agreed as Serious Untoward Incidents and STEIS reported are

Following review of the fact find information, a Root Cause Analysis Investigation can be

required even though the incident is not STEIS reported. In these cases the

presented to TIRG at the discretion of the Directorate and TIRG Chair.

Final Report to the Trust Incident Review Group

The report is submitted to TIRG within 45 working days. Once agreed the report is sent to
Commissioning Group for final review and closure.

Incident agreed as Serious Untoward Incident

Incident is reported via STEIS and a full Root Cause Analysis Investigation is commenced.

Review by Risk Management

Risk Management reviews the information on the fact find and agrees the level of investigation with the Deputy
Director of Care Services and Deputy Director of Nursing/Head of Clinical Governance.

Incident Occurs - Incident Report Form (IR1) Completed

Due to the severity rating /type of incident a Fact Find report is completed.

information relating to new incidents

(SUI).

by Directorate – May and June

(Strategic Executive Information

Schedule of cases to be presented to Trust Incident Review Group

from incident occurring to presentation at

that are agreed as Serious Untoward Incidents and STEIS reported are

a Root Cause Analysis Investigation can be

required even though the incident is not STEIS reported. In these cases the report is

presented to TIRG at the discretion of the Directorate and TIRG Chair.

The report is submitted to TIRG within 45 working days. Once agreed the report is sent to Leeds West Clinical

Incident is reported via STEIS and a full Root Cause Analysis Investigation is commenced.

Risk Management reviews the information on the fact find and agrees the level of investigation with the Deputy
Director of Care Services and Deputy Director of Nursing/Head of Clinical Governance.

Due to the severity rating /type of incident a Fact Find report is completed.
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TABLE 1 – Breakdown of Serious Untoward Incidents (SUI)

TABLE 2 – Overview of SUI’s by Care Group

Care Group Incident Date Incident Type Incident Number Severity Rating Service

Leeds 05/05/15 Death – Hanging WEBINC-5217 5 W5 Becklin

Leeds 08/05/15 Death – Hanging WEBINC-5514 5 SSE CMHT

Leeds 12/05/15 Death – Hanging WEBINC-5408 5 WNW CMHT

Leeds 15/05/15** Death - Hit by train WEBINC-5491 5 WNW CMHT

York 05/06/15 Death - Carbon monoxide
poisoning

WEB INC 5 Primary Care Mental Health Team

York 05/06/15 Death – Hanging 145106 5 Primary Care Mental Health Team

** Incident was identified on the 15/05/15 – the death occurred Feb 2015

Period:
Leeds Care

Group

Specialist and

LD Care Group

York

North Yorkshire

Care Group

TOTAL

NUMBER OF INCIDENTS REPORTED

VIA STEIS – May 2015
4 0 0 4

NUMBER OF INCIDENTS REPORTED

VIA STEIS – June 2015
0 0 2 2
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TABLE 3–Number of Final reports of STEIS incidents submitted to TIRG within 12 week

TABLE 4 – Schedule of cases to be presented to Trust Incident Review Group

Period: Sep 14 – Jul 15 Leeds Care Group
Specialist and LD

Care Group

York
North Yorkshire

Care Group
TOTAL

NUMBER OF REPORTS DUE 24 5 16 45

NUMBER OF REPORTS SUBMITTED
ON DUE DATE

(Aim 100%)
1 (4%) 0 (0%) 3 (19%) 4 (9%)

OVERDUE 1 MONTH 3 2 3 8

OVERDUE 2 MONTH 7 1 2 10

OVERDUE 3 MONTH 4 0 0 4

OVERDUE 4 MONTH 1 0 0 1

NUMBER OF REPORTS
OUTSTANDING FOR THIS TIME

PERIOD
8 2 8 18

Date of
incident

Type of Incident Care Group STEIS/IR1
LYPFT

Ref
TIRG Due

Date
Proposed Date to TIRG
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26/11/2014 Death –Hanging Leeds 39054 27-14.15 11/02/2015 08/07/2015

03/03/2015 Death - Hanging Leeds 8511 40-14.15 13/05/2015 08/07/2015

16/12/2014 Death York 41010 32-14.15 08/04/2015 08/07/2015

27/11/2014 Death –Hanging Leeds 38937 26-14.15 11/02/2015
Presented 08/04/2015
Deferred to 08/07/2015

26/12/2014 Self-Harm York 42473 34-14.15 08/04/2015
Presented 10/06/2015
Deferred to 12/08/2015

23/10/2014 Assault leading to injury Leeds 36402 17-14.15 11/02/2015 12/08/2015

28/11/2014 Self-Harm Specialist & LD 39944 30-14.15 11/03/2015 12/08/2015

11/12/2014 Death Specialist & LD 40672 31-14.15 11/03/2015 12/08/2015

28/12/2014 Death - hanging Leeds 42064 33-14.15 08/04/2015 09/09/2015

03/02/2015 Unexpected Death York 4687 36-14.15 13/05/2015 09/09/2015

23/02/2015 Death - Hanging York 7152 37-14.15 13/05/2015 09/09/2015

24/02/2015 Death - hit by train Leeds 7504 38-14.15 13/05/2015 09/09/2015

01/03/2015 Attempted suicide - jumped from bridge York 8010 39-14.15 13/05/2015 14/10/2015

13/03/2015 Death - Hanging Leeds 10007 41-14.15 10/06/2015 14/10/2015

17/12/2014 Death - Hanging Leeds 10201 42-14.15 10/06/2015 14/10/2015

17/03/2015 Death - Overdose York 10358 43-14.15 10/06/2015 14/10/2015

26/02/2015 Loss of Confidential Information Leeds 10364 44-14.15 10/06/2015 11/11/2015

10/04/2015 Death - RTA York/SS LTHT 00-15.16 08/07/2015 11/11/2015

08/04/2015 Death - overdose Leeds 13257 01-15.16 08/07/2015 11/11/2015

03/04/2015 Death - Hanging York 13855 02-15.16 08/07/2015 11/11/2015

15/04/2015 Fall - fracture Leeds 13954 03-15.16 08/07/2015 09/12/2015

16/04/2015 Death - Hanging York 14193 04-15.16 08/07/2015 09/12/2015

21/04/2015 Death - Hanging Leeds 14449 05-15.16 12/08/2015 09/12/2015

05/05/2015 Death - Hanging Leeds 15990 06-15.16 12/08/2015 09/12/2015

12/05/2015 Death - Hanging Leeds 16874 07-15.16 12/08/2015 13/01/2016

01/02/2015 Death - Hit by train Leeds 17106 08-15.16 12/08/2015 13/01/2016

08/05/2015 Death - Hanging Leeds 17165 09-15.16 12/08/2015 13/01/2016

01/06/2015 Serious Near Miss York N/A 6005 09/09/2015 13/01/2016

05/06/2015 Death - Carbon monoxide poisoning York 20758 10-15.16 09/09/2015 10/02/2016
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Please note: The CCG have been advised of the above schedule and have granted extensions on all the reports.

05/06/2015 Death - Hanging York 20764 11-15.16 09/09/2015 10/02/2016
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Following the Trust Incident Review Group Meeting Held: 10/06/15 & 08/07/15

Part B:

Serious Untoward

Incidents Lessons Learnt
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1 Purpose

 Summary of lessons learnt from Serious Untoward Incidents.

 Sharing of good practice highlighted from reports.

 Conclusions of any thematic reviews undertaken.

 Results of any trend analyses.

 Summary of major actions that have been implemented.

2 Executive Summary

Learning from experience is critical to the delivery of safe and effective

services in the NHS. To avoid repeating mistakes organisations need to

recognise and learn from them, to ensure that the lessons are communicated

and shared and that plans for improving safety are formulated and acted

upon. The findings and learning from any adverse event within the Trust may

have relevance and valuable learning for the local team and also other teams

and services. This paper outlines the identified lessons learnt following the

Trust Incident Review Group meeting 10/06/15 & 08/07/15.

3 Background

The purpose of the Trust Incident Review Group is to review the investigation

reports to ensure that all serious untoward incidents have been investigated

thoroughly, to agree recommendations and action plans that are relevant and

achievable, to oversee the implementation of those action plans and to

identify trends and patterns of untoward incidents that may require further

investigation.

This activity supports LYPFT to be an organisation with a memory, to assist

learning from incidents and to continue the drive towards safer therapeutic

care for all service users.

Findings from the meetings held: 10/06/15 & 08/07/15

4 Outline of Lessons Learnt from Serious Untoward Incidents

Consistency of Approach

A service user had visits from 9 practitioners in home based treatment over a

one month period. It was not until the 6th visit at home that the same

practitioner saw the service user for a 2nd time.

Consistency was further disrupted due to the lack of clear risk assessment and

a management plan. Staff were delivering interventions based on their own
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judgement, knowledge and skills. Whilst practitioners can be expected to

respond to situations appropriately and change intervention strategies if

required, the lack of an underlying plan of treatment for psychological

interventions meant that the service user and carer were receiving

conflicting/inconsistent advice and support. Support staff must have a plan of

care and risk management plan to guide their care interventions.

Availability of Beds

A Serious Incident Report author was asked to consider if there was any

indication that the reason for not admitting the service user was due to a lack of

beds?

The Care Team considered this question and confirmed that admission to

hospital would not have helped this service user. This decision was not down

to bed capacity.

TIRG noted that bed reduction is on the agenda of the Mental Health Network

NHS Confederation.

The group will remain mindful to the question, ‘Are we less inclined to admitting

service users due to a lack of beds but not vocalizing this because of cultural

change and reduced expectation?’

The group will also consider the national drive to abolish suicide of Mental

Health patients.

The availability of beds shouldn’t affect clinical decisions but does it?

Safeguarding

Allegations of abuse were openly discussed at a multidisciplinary review

meeting, and as part of the clinical plan. However, a discussion with the Trust

Safeguarding team would have promoted a more transparent approach in

sharing the allegations outside of the clinical team.

The team had false assurance that because the service user was on within

eyesight observations his allegations could not be true and he was therefore

safe. The staff focused on keeping the service user safe but didn’t consider the

risks to them (i.e. if same staff member completed the obs).

The Clinical Directors will take this issue to their Care Groups and teams to aid

a thorough discussion and promote learning and awareness.

Needs of the Family

The group discussed a Serious Incident where the needs of a child within the

family were not considered. If it is known that there is a young child in the

family then key information should be obtained and recorded within the records
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at the initial crisis assessment:

 Name of child

 DOB of child

 Care needs

The gathering of this information does not automatically trigger a safeguarding

referral but it aids any further investigation if required.

Staff need to remember the below when considering the needs of other family

members/children:

o Identify

o Involve

o Document

Caseload Size

The patient detailed in a Serious Incident Review was one of a caseload of 58

people. TIRG agreed that a case load this high does not allow the member of

staff the valuable “thinking space” needed to be able to consider fully a service

user needs.

Although the issue was not a direct cause to the incident it was noted to be a

contributory factor. The service user had a very committed CPN, which has

been acknowledged by the family.

The group agreed that the report recommendation be amended to include all

items within our gift such as the provision of extra administrative staff, better

recording within the records (i.e. digital pens) and the effective use of

unqualified staff etc.

The group were clear that this could not be solved by us alone but requires

escalation - the recruitment issue will also be raised at the CCG Quality Group.

The risk identified is that safe clinical management is compromised.

TIRG requested that the following are actioned by the Care Groups:

 Reminder to Nurses to escalate concerns through their codes of practice

as they may be compromised professionally.

 Look at the administrative function for CPA meetings.

 Seek information from the teams direct on what can we do to help – what

do they need?

 Risk management to circulate a Trustwide notice to inform staff on how

to raise a concern.

5 Areas of Good Practice
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Motivated Team

A Serious Incident Review Report highlighted a team that are clearly motivated

to provide high quality care and to develop the service. Their passion to review

the service and be instrumental in its development to improve quality was

commendable.

Patient Centred Care

The outpatient appointment arranged to co-incide with a service user’s

neurology appointment was a very good example of patient centred care;

ensuring that a review of the service user’s mental health took place to support

through a highlighted period of risk.

Support to the family

Timely contact and support was provided to the family of a service user post

incident. The family reported that they were also very grateful for the support

that Aspire had provided. The care co-ordinator and Aspire team manager

visited the family and also offered a session with a family therapist in response

to concerns of the impact on the service user’s brother. The care co-ordinator

attended the service user’s funeral and offered on-going emotional support to

them.

Contact with service user

The responses and contact from the first referral to the last contact with a

service user were seamless. The SPA operator was able to give the service

user’s wife the correct information to ensure that face to face contact was made

with the service user within one hour of the initial telephone call.

Recommendations

The Board is requested to:

 Note the content of the report

 Be assured that the actions taken in respect of the lessons learnt are

being progressed appropriately through the organisation.
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GLOSSARY OF DEFINITIONS

The following definitions are of relevance to this document:

Definition Meaning

ASPIRE Leeds Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP) Service. They work with young
people who are experiencing early signs of psychosis.

Case Conference Meeting to discuss complex cases that are very serious or have a multi-

agency aspect and that may include criminal offences and possible

organisational failures.

CPA Care Pathway Approach

CPN Community Psychiatric Nurse

CCG Clinical Commissioning Group (replaced PCT’s)

ICS Intensive Community Services

Incident For the purpose of the Trust’s incident reporting system, an incident is

defined as: -

‘any event, untoward or unusual, which is a deviation from the normal

pattern of activity or therapeutic well-being or smooth running of the

workplace (e.g. ward/ department, client’s home, etc.), which involves

service users and/or staff and/or visitors, and which may adversely

affect their health and/or safety and/or welfare and/or confidentiality

then or later’.

LYPFT Leeds and York Partnerships Foundation Trust

MDT Multi-Disciplinary Team - A group composed of members with varied

but complimentary experience, qualifications, and skills that contribute

to the achievement of the specific objectives.

NCISH The National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide by people
with mental illness

PARIS Electronic patient information record system.

RCA Root Cause Analysis.

Risk A risk is characterised by both the likelihood/probability of harm or

information security breach actually occurring (e.g. low, medium or

high) and the impact/severity of the harm (e.g. slight injury, major

injury, death).
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The level of risk to health increases with the impact/severity of the

hazard and the duration and frequency of exposure to the hazard.

Section 17 Leave Section 17of the Mental Health Act 1983 makes provision for patients

who are liable to be detained under various other sections of the Act to

be granted leave of absence.

Section 17 applies to patients who are detained under ss.2, 3, 37, or

47 of the Act.

Serious

Untoward

Incident (SUI)

A serious untoward incident is defined as ‘any accident or incident

where a service user, member of staff (including those in the

community), or member of the public suffers serious injury, major

permanent harm or unexpected death, (or the risk of death or injury),

on hospital, other health service premises or other premises where

health care is provided, or where actions of health services staff are

likely to cause significant concern’.

STEIS Strategic Executive Information System

This is the Trust’s mechanism for reporting serious untoward incidents

to the Clinical Commissioning Group.

TIRG Trust Incident Review Group

MEWS Modified Early Warning System

CAMHS Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services

CQUINN Commissioning for Quality and Innovation

MIND Organisation that provides advice and support to empower anyone

experiencing a mental health problem. They campaign to improve

services, raise awareness and promote understanding.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS OF LEEDS AND YORK
PARTNERSHIP NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust’s (‘the Trust’s’) financial statement (the
‘financial statements’):

 give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust’s affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of its income and
expenditure and cash flows for the year then ended; and

 have been properly prepared in the accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting
Manual 2014/15

What we have audited

The Trust’s financial statements compromise:

 the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015;

 the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;

 the Statement of Cash Flows for the year the ended;

 the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity for the year then ended;

 the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report, rather than in the notes to
the financial statements. These are cross-referenced from the financial statements and are identified as
audited.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statement is the
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2014/15 issued by the Independent Regulator of NHS
Foundation Trusts (‘Monitor’).

Our audit approach
 Overall materiality: £3.6 million which represents 2% of

total income.
…………………………………………………………..………

 We performed an audit of the complete financial
information of the Trust for the year ended 31 March
2015, subject to the level of materiality outlined above

 Our audit was performed at Trust HQ, at Thorpe Park in
Leeds, where the finance function is based.

…………………………………………………….……………

 Risk of fraud in income and expenditure recognition;

 Estates: accounting for land and buildings; and

 Medium-term financial sustainability.

Materiality

Audit scope

Areas of
focus



Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

The Trust provides specialist mental health and learning disability services to the population of Leeds and
York, and the surrounding areas. Services are delivered from a wide range of sites across West and North
Yorkshire.

There are six main areas within the Trust, which include: Leeds Care Group; York and North Yorkshire Care
Group; Specialist and Learning Disability Care Group, Psychology and Psychotherapy services, Learning
Disability services; and Pharmacy services.

Its primary commissioners are: NHS Leeds North Clinical Commissioning Group, NHS Leeds West Clinical
Commissioning Group; and NHS Leeds South and East Clinical Group. Of the three, the lead for mental health
commissioning is Leeds North Clinical Commissioning Group (‘CCG’).

In addition, the Trust has a contract with NHS Vale of York Clinical Commissioning Group to deliver mental
health learning disability services in York and North Yorkshire. Specialist services are also commissioned
directly by NHS England.

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (‘ISAs (UK
&Ireland)’).

We designed our audit by determining materiality and assessing the risks of material misstatement in the
financial statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for
example in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering
future events that are inherently uncertain.

As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including
evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud.

The risk of material misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit, including the allocation of our
resources and effort, are identified as ‘areas of focus’ in the table below. We have also set out how we
tailored our audit to address these specific areas in order to provide an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures should be read in this context. This is
not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Area of focus How our audit addressed the area of focus

Risk of fraud in income and expenditure recognition

Management’s key accounting policies, judgements
and estimates relating to the recognition in income
and expenditure are disclosed in note 1 to the financial
statements. Further detail and explanatory notes on
the balances presented in the primary statements are
included in notes 2 to 5 to the financial statements.

Due to uncertainty with the financial sustainability of
the sector, and planned future changes to funding
mechanisms for mental health services, management
have an incentive to defer income into future
accounting periods and to recognise expenditure early.

Recognition of income and expenditure

We have evaluated and tested the accounting policy
for income recognition against Monitor’s Annual
Reporting Manual by reviewing significant
transactions against contractual requirements and
against the criteria within the IAS 18.

We obtained and read a sample of significant
contracts, and reconciled transactions recognised by
the Trust back to contracted amounts. Reconciling
items related to non-recurrent income received in
year, which we vouched to official contract
variations.



In particular, the Trust needs to ensure it is correctly
recognising income and expenditure against a
backdrop of £2.1 million of non-recurrent income
received in 2014/15 from its main commissioners
(2013/14: £3.7 million).

We consider our key areas of focus to have been:

 Recognition of income and expenditure,
including through the intra-NHS agreement of
balances;

 The inherent complexities in a number of
contractual arrangements entered into by the
Trust;

 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements made by management; and
manipulation of the ledgers through use of
manual journals.

Where income or expenditure was recorded
through manual journals, we traced the journal
amounts through to activity reports or invoices on a
sample basis to establish whether a service had
been provided. All journals tested were identified as
appropriate.

For transactions close to the year-end we tested
that cut-off procedures had been appropriately
applied on a sample basis, with no issues identified.

We examined the extent of the Trust’s complex
supplier arrangements, and concluded through
testing that these arrangements were appropriately
accounted for.

We tested expenditure recorded during the year to
ensure it was appropriately recognised in that
period, and did not relate to future accounting
periods. This included testing repairs and
maintenance expenditure back to supplier invoice to
ensure the Trust was correct not to capitalise these
amounts.

Intra-NHS agreement of balances

We have tested the results of the Trust’s
engagement with the intra-NHS agreement of
balances process, including any amounts in dispute,
and have considered the implications for the
financial statements.

For those balances in dispute we have sought to:

 Understand the nature of the dispute,
review correspondence with
counterparties and challenge
management’s assumptions in relation to
the amounts recognised;

 Review prior dispute resolution history;
and

 Obtain updates on whether these
balances have been subsequently agreed

We have considered the impact of these disputed
items on the financial statements and concluded
that there is no material impact.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

We evaluated the tested management’s
accounting estimates, focusing on material
provisions and accruals within the financial
statements.

We assessed the completeness of management’s



estimates for liabilities within the financial
statements by examining subsequent
disbursement records and understanding the
nature of those transactions.

Our focus was on the release of provisions for
redundancy cost and the provision for the cost of
implementation actions to address estates issues
to Bootham Park Hospital and Limetrees.

We challenged management on the
reasonableness of these estimates and their
utilisation, and examined relevant supporting
documentation including formal Board papers and
tested detailed calculations prepared by
management.

We tested accruals through reference to
supporting evidence such as invoices received since
the balance sheet date, or by challenging
management’s assumptions through comparing
estimate made in prior periods with actual results.
No issues were identified

Manipulation of journal posted to the ledger

Our manual journals work was carried out using a
risk based approach, utilising a data analytical
technique to identify manual journals relating to
income or expenditure , or being posted outside
‘normal’ office hours. We traced each identified
journal entry to supporting documentation.

No issues were identified.

Estates: accounting for land and buildings

The Trust is required to regularly revalue its assets in
line with Monitor’s Annual Reporting Manual. We have
focused on this area due to the material nature of this
balance, and the consequent impact on the financial
statements was it to be materially misstated.

As at the balance sheet date in 2014/15 the Trust’s
estate was valued at £50.7 million. The financial
statements show a revaluation gain of £0.8 million
which is accounted for through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Management’s accounting policies, key judgements
and use of experts relating to the valuation of the
Trust’s estate are disclosed in note 1 to the financial
statements.

Valuations are performed by a professionally
accredited expert, in accordance with the Royal

Valuation of the estate

Valuation of land and building requires a
significant level of judgement and technical
expertise to be applied, and therefore our work
focused on whether the methodology, assumptions
and underlying data used by the Valuer are
appropriate and correctly applied.

We have evaluated the competency and objectivity
of the Valuer used by the Trust through reference to
the report prepared by the Valuation Office Agency,
and through reference to RICS accreditation for the
individual Valuer.

We used our valuation expertise and our knowledge
of the Trust to evaluate and challenge the
assumptions and methodology applied to be
consistent with industry practice and in line with our
expectations. We agreed the underlying data on
which the valuation was based back to floor plans



Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICSS) Appraisals and
Valuation Manual, and performed with sufficient
regulatory to ensure that the carrying value is not
materially different from fair value at the balance
sheet date.

The Trust has a number of Private Finance Initiative
(‘PFI’) properties, grouped under two separate
schemes. Management has invoked the break clause
on one of these schemes during 2014/15, which
includes two properties. The Trust exited one property
in February 2015, and plans to vacate the other in May
2015.

In the current year the Trust has instructed its
valuation expert to perform a valuation over its entire
estate, including its PFI assets.

Specific areas of risk include:

 Accuracy and completeness of detailed
information on assets provided to the
evaluation expert;

 Appropriate use of underlying assumptions
regarding classification of properties by the
Trust;

 The methodology, assumptions and
underlying data used by the valuation expert,
and our access to these; and

 The accounting for PFI properties due to their
complex nature.

for a sample of properties, and tested a sample of
new additions back to invoices to ensure they had
been added at an appropriate value.

We reviewed the disclosures made within the
financial statements against the requirements of
Monitor’s Annual Reporting Manual, and checked
the underlying accounting entries.

Our procedures did not identify any significant
issues.

Private Finance Initiative

During 2014/15 management have disposed of one
PFI property, and will exit another within 2015/16.

We have examined the disclosure made by
management within the notes to the financial
statements of the use of the break-clause and
considered them to be reasonable.

We have tested the disclosure of future payments
for these PFI assets within the notes to the financial
statements and considered them to be reasonable.

Medium-term financial sustainability

Refer to the Annual Governance Statement, note 1 to
the financial statement and pages 43 to 47 of the
Annual Report

As part of our audit work, we are required to consider
the on-going financial position of the Trust and the
appropriateness of the going concern principle.

The Trust reported a cash balance of £46.9 million at
the balance sheet date (2013/14: £37.5 million) against
a plan £38.8 million.

Future cash balances are forecast to decrease
marginally to £43.4 million in 2015/16, and thereafter
due to planned capital expenditure.

In 2015/16 and 2016/17 the Trust’s budgets anticipate
that the financial surplus will decrease, with a forecast
breakeven position in 2015/16, and a small forecast
deficit in 2016/17.

This is an area of focus due to:

Our audit work has addressed the financial
sustainability of the Trust, and sought to confirm
that use of the going concern assumption is
appropriate, primary through:

 Challenging the Trust’s future financial
plans by testing its underlying assumptions
against external benchmarks, and
performing a downside scenario test;

 Comparing historic performance against
planned cost improvement plans in order
to sensitise the Trust’s cost improvement
plans for 2015/16; and

 Performing sensitivity analysis on the
Trust’s financial plan for 2015/16, taking
into account the potential loss of income
represented by the current tender for
services commissioned by NHS Vale of York
CCG.

The work has not highlighted any significant issues
to report in respect of the financial sustainability of



 Uncertainty surrounding the current tender
for services commissioned by NHS Vale of
York CCG;

 The current economic position of the
Foundation Trust sector, which continues to
deteriorate and remains a challenging
operating environment; and

 Anticipated future changes to the funding
mechanisms for the mental health services
within the NHS.

the Trust, nor of its use of the going concern
assumption.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on
the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Trust, the accounting processes
and controls, and the environment in which the Trust operates.

In establishing our overall approach we assessed the risks of material misstatement, taking into account the
nature, likelihood and potential magnitude of any misstatement. Following this assessment, we applied
professional judgement to determine the extent of testing required over each balance in the financial
statements.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds
for materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit
and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both
individually and on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, consistent with last year, we determined materiality for the financial
statements as a whole as follows:

Overall materiality £3.6 million (2014: £3.6 million)

How we determined it 2% of income

Rational for benchmark applied We have applied this benchmark, which is a generally accepted
measure when auditing not for profit organisations, because we
believe this to the most appropriate financial measure of the
performance of a Foundation Trust

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit
above £180,000 (2014: £180,000) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.

Other required reporting in accordance with the Audit Code for NHS
foundation trusts

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Audit Code for NHS foundation trusts

In our opinion:



 The information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

 The part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust s Annual Reporting Manual 2014/15.

Consistency of other information

Under the Audit Code for NHS foundation trusts we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

 Information in the Annual Report is:
- Materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial

statements; or
- Apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with,

our knowledge of the Trust acquired in the course of performing our
audit; or

- Otherwise misleading.

We have no
exceptions to report
arising from his
responsibility.

 The statement given by the directors on page 171, in accordance with
provision C.1.1 of the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance, that they
considered the Annual Report taken a whole to be fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for members to
access to Trust’s performance, business model and strategy is materially
inconsistent with our knowledge of the Trust acquired in the course of
performing our audit.

We have no
exceptions to report
arising from this
responsibility

 The section of the Annual Governance Statement on page 55, as required by
provision C.3.9 of the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance, describing
the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Committee.

We have no
exceptions to report
arising from this
responsibility.

 The Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure
requirements set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual
2014/15 or is misleading or is inconsistent with information of which we are
aware from our audit. We are not required to consider, nor have we
considered, whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all the risks
and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.

We have no
exceptions to report
arising from this
responsibility.

Quality report including economy, efficiency and effectiveness of resources

Under the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

 We have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the Trust has made proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources;

 We have qualified, on any aspect, our opinion on the Quality Report.

We have no exceptions to report in respect of the responsibility listed above.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors



As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view in accordance
with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2014/15.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with the
National Health Service Act 2006, The Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts issued by Monitor and ISAs (UK &
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for
Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Council of Governors of Leeds and
York Partnership NHS Foundation as a body in accordance with paragraph 24 of Schedule 7 of the National
Health Service Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands
it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

What an audit of financial statements involves

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:

 Whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Trust’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed;

 The reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and

 The overall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ judgement against available evidence,
forming our own judgement, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider
necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through setting
the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatement or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report.

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements
of Chapter 5 of Part 2 to the National Health Service 2006 and the Audit Code for the NHS Foundation Trusts
issued by Monitor

Ian Looker (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Leeds



Date: 26 May 2015

(a) The maintenance and integrity of the Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust website is the
responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of
these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have
occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website.

(b) Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS OF
LEEDS AND YORK PARTNERSHIP NHS FOUNDATION TRUST ON THE ANNUAL QUALITY REPORT

We have been engaged by the Council of Governors of Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust to
perform an independent assurance engagement in respect of Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation
Trust’s Quality Report for the year ended 31 March 20015 (the ‘Quality Report’) and specified performance
indicators contained therein.

Scope and subject matter

The indicators for the year ended 31 March 2015 subject to limited assurance (the ‘specified indicators’);
marked with the symbol A in the Quality Report; consist of the following national priority indicators as
mandated by Monitor:

Specified Indicators
Specified indicators criteria (exact page number
where criteria can be found)

Minimising delayed transfer of care
Criteria can be found on page 151 to 152 of the
Quality Report

Crisis resolution home treatment
Criteria can be found on page 151 to 152 of the
Quality Report

Respective responsibilities of the Directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for the content and the preparation of the Quality Report in accordance with the
specified indicators criteria referred to on pages of the Quality Report as listed above (the ‘Criteria’). The
directors are also responsible for the conformity of their criteria with the assessment criteria set out in the
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (‘FT ARM’) and the ‘Detailed requirements for quality reports
2014/2015’ issued by the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts (‘Monitor’).

Our responsibility is to form a conclusion, based on limited assurance procedures, on whether anything has
come to our attention that causes us to believe that:

 The Quality Report does not incorporate the matters requires to be reported on as specified in

Annex 2 to Chapter 7 of the FT ARM and the ‘Detailed requirements for quality reports 2014/15’;

 The Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the sources specified below; and

 The specific indicators have not been prepared in all material respects in accordance with the

Criteria and the six dimension of data quality set out in the ‘Detailed guidance for external

assurance on quality reports 2014/15’.

We read the Quality Report and consider whether it addresses the content requirements of the FT ARM and
the ‘Detailed requirements for quality reports 2014/15’; and consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any material omissions.

We read the other information contained in the Quality Report and consider whether it is materially
inconsistent with the following documents:

 Board minutes for the financial year, April 2014 and up to March 2015 (the period);

 Draft minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors held on Thursday 30 April 2015;

 Papers relating to quality report reported to the Board over the period April 2014 to March 2015;



 Feedback from the Commissioners; NHS Vale of York Clinical Commissioning Group 2014/15 and
Leeds North Clinical Commissioning Group dated 28 April 2015;

 Feedback from Healthwatch York dated 2014/15

 Feedback from Overview and Scrutiny Committee dated 2015 April 2015;

 The Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority Social Services
and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, dated April 2014 – March 2015;

 The latest national and local staff survey 2014;

 Care Quality Commission Intelligent Monitoring Reports dated October 2014 and November 2014;

 The Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control environment dated April 2015.

We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with those documents (collectively, the ‘documents’). Our responsibilities do not extend to any
other information.

We are in compliance with the applicable independence and competency requirements of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (‘ICAEW’) Code of Ethics. Our team comprised assurance
practitioners and relevant subject matter experts.

This report, including the conclusion, has been prepared solely for Council of Governors of Leeds and York
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust as a body, to assist the Council of Governors in reporting Leeds and York
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust’s quality agenda, performance and activities. We permit the disclosure of
this report within the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2015, to enable the Council of Governors to
demonstrate they have discharged their governance responsibilities by commissioning an independent
assurance report in connection with the indicators. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Council of Governors as a body and Leeds and York Partnership
NHS Foundation Trust for our work or this report save where terms are expressly agreed and with our prior
consent in writing.

Assurance work performed

We conducted this limited assurance engagement in accordance with International Standard on Assurance
Engagement 3000 ‘Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information’
issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standard Board (‘ISAE 3000’). Our limited assurance
procedures included:

 Reviewing the content of the Quality Report against the requirements of the FT ARM and
‘Detailed requirements for quality reports 2014/15’;

 Reviewing the Quality Report for consistency against the documents specified above;
 Obtaining an understanding of the design and operation of the controls in place in relation to

the collation and reporting of the specified indicators, including controls over third party
information (if applicable) and performing walkthrough to confirm our understanding;

 Based on our understanding, assessing the risks that the performance against the specified
indicators may be materially misstated and determining the nature, timing and extent and
extent of further procedures;

 Making enquiries of relevant management, personnel and, where relevant, third parties;
 Considering significant judgments made by the NHS Foundation Trust in preparation of the

specified indicators;
 Performing limited testing on a selective basis of evidence supporting the reported

performance indicators, and assessing the related disclosures; and
 Reading the documents.

A limited assurance engagement is less in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement. The nature, timing
and extent of procedures for gathering sufficient appropriate evidence are deliberately limited relative to a
reasonable assurance engagement.



Limitations

Non-financial performance information is subject to more inherent limitations than financial information,
given the characteristics of the subject matter and the methods used for the determining such information.

The absence of a significant body of established practice on which to draw allows for the selection of different
but acceptable measurement techniques may also vary. Furthermore, the nature and methods used to
determine such information, as well as the measurement criteria and the precision thereof, may change over
time. It is important to read the Quality Report in the context of the assessment criteria set out in the FT ARM
the ‘Detailed requirements for quality reports 2014/15’ and the criteria referred to above.

The nature, form and content required of Quality Reports are determined by Monitor. This may result in
omission of information relevant to other users, for example for the purpose of comparing the results of
different NHS Foundation Trusts.

In addition, the scope of our assurance work has not included governance over quality or non-mandated
indicators in the Quality Report, which have been determined locally by Leeds and York Partnership NHS
Foundation Trust.

Conclusion

 Based on the results of our procedures, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that for year ended 31 March 2015;

 The Quality Report does not incorporate the matters required to be reported on as specified in
Annex 2 to Chapter 7 of the FT ARM and the ‘Detailed requirements for quality reports 2014/15’,

 The Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the documents specified above;
and

 The specified indicators have not been prepared in all material respects in accordance with the
Criteria and the six dimensions of data quality set out in the ‘Detailed guidance for external
assurance on quality reports 2014/15’.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Leeds

Date: 26 May 2015

The maintenance and integrity of the Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust’s website is
responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the assurance providers does not involve consideration
of the matters and, accordingly, the assurance providers accept no responsibility for any changes that may
have occurred to the reported performance indicators or criteria since they were initially presented on the
website.
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Committee as part of their assurance that the Membership body widely
represents the Community it serves. This is als
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To be taken in the public session (Part A)

To be taken in private session (Part B)
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This report is normally presented as part of an assurance report
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and the Membership team welcome any comments from the Gov
as to how this report might provide more helpful information.

Part B of this report is presented to the Membership and Development
Committee as part of their assurance that the Membership body widely
represents the Community it serves. This is also the assurance that is
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Matters exempt under the Freedom of Information Act (quote section

Part “A” of the membership report, that is produced for the Membership

This report is normally presented as part of an assurance report to the
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and the Membership team welcome any comments from the Governors
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Committee as part of their assurance that the Membership body widely

o the assurance that is



required by Monitor.

Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):
note information regarding
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regarding recruitment of members

to read and
recruitment of members



Membership and Development Committee Report August 2015

PART A

Background

This report is normally presented as part of an assurance report to the membership and development committee. This information
is now shared with the wider Council of Governors for information..

Engagement work and Membership recruitment is under constant review and the Membership team welcome any comments from
the Governors as to how this report might provide more helpful information.

Part B of this report is presented to the Membership and Development Committee as part of their assurance that the Membership
body widely represents the Community it serves. This is also the assurance that is required by Monitor.

The current membership stands at 17,886 members including staff, service user, carer and public constituencies (-39).

This is the number of active members within our membership, the number has continued to reduce following the recent mail out of
‘Imagine’ (Deceased (-3), gone-aways (-69), opt outs (-17) Duplicate (0), left employment (3), total reduction = 92

Introduction



The current membership stands at 17,886 members including staff, service user, carer and public constituencies (-39).

This is the number of active members within our membership, the number has continued to reduce following the recent mail out of
‘Imagine’ (Deceased (3), gone-aways (69), opt outs (17), duplicates (0) left employment (3), total reduction = 92

Recruitment Events

We have held a number of events over past months, as well as some which are still in the pipeline. The events listed below.

May

13 Real voices Leeds Civic Hall 15

15 Stall Leeds Leeds University 5

20 International trials day Leeds Town Hall 3

June

6 Beeston Festival Leeds Beeston Park 1

30 Leeds North CCG Leeds Leeds Seventeen 10

July

11 Kirkstall Festival Leeds Kirkstall Abbey 27

12 Mental health awareness fair Leeds Magistrates Court

August

5 Professionals hour, hidden disabilities and complex needs Leeds St Goerge's centre

October

10 WMHD Leeds Civic Hall

November



11 *‘Off to the caf’ (con about gender & MH) Leeds City Museum

*Off to the Caf is a joint event with Leeds Beckett University. It will seek to address the questions, ‘How does gender inform mental

health and wellbeing?’, ‘To what extent does current support meet the gendered mental health needs of the community?

Members from Leeds Community Healthcare 3

Returned sign up forms 3

Staff to public 28

Signed up online 14



The Man Up? Campaign Plan – Monthly Topics Overview
** Steering Group established with clinical partners Trustwide.

Month Focus LYPFT service 1 LYPFT service 2 Local Partner 1 Local Partner 2

July
Men in focus: Spotting
the Warning Signs

Carers Leeds Service User Network
Groups

Time to Change

Aug
The Meaning of
Masculinity

Arts and Minds Diversity Team or
Time to Change

Leeds and York Mind Leeds Men’s Health
Network

Sept
Annual Members Day
2015

All Partners throughout the campaign

Oct

Kick into touch:
Linking physical
health and mental
wellbeing

NHS National
Smokefree Initiative

Community Teams GP's LCHT

Nov
Find Your Tribe: No
man is an island

Community Teams Counsellors 3rd sector community
groups

Leeds/York Mind

Dec
Christmas Campaign Time to Change Umbrella Cafe York Mind Leeds Mind



Annual Members Day 2015

Tuesday 22nd September 10.am – 4pm

The Barbican Theatre, York

The star guests for this year’s AMD are State Of Mind, made up of former rugby players. The session they run is usually around 40
minutes and is followed by questions. They will raise awareness of the issues surrounding mental health and wellbeing , and talk
about the real struggle that players face. Their presentation will include some ex rugby players who will share their personal
experiences of mental health, stress and challenges..

There will be lots of stalls from around the Trust and from our third sector partner organisations. We will have workshops running
throughout the afternoon including; “iMuse”, singing and signing, Time to Change Leeds, creating a ‘Mantage’ and the launch of the
Time To Change Leeds Man Up? Film.

This is a great venue with plenty of space to allow us to do many different things. Claire Woodham, Lead Governor, is part of the

organisational meeting group to plan the day. As usual we will be asking for as many governors as possible to be involved with

helping to plan the event, and more importantly to host it and run an Info stall.

This is our Members day and as Governors it is also YOUR day.

Next planning meeting is at THQ on Wednesday 16th September at 2.00pm.



Event Name

Event Location

Event Date

Organisation

Document last updated

Document author

Annual Members’ Day

(plus Annual Members’ Meeting)

Barbican Centre, York

Tuesday 22 September 2015

LYPFT

17 August 2015

Scharna Lewis 0113 855 5900 | Sarah Dransfield 0113 855

5944

Scharna Lewis 0113 855 5900 | Sarah Dransfield 0113 855



Annual Members Meeting

Management of AMM - Keisha Allen

Reception area – members’ stall with voting card system  Four ‘merchandising’ stations (approx. 1 metre in length
each) are available in the entrance hall. Three x ‘members’
and one x ‘non-member sign-up’. Each station will have A3
sign.

Margaret Sentamu to open the event margaret.sentamu@nhs.net /
07787 120475

Andrew - to discuss format and content with Mrs Sentamu

Frank Griffith to open the AMM

Catering– water provided all day at the reception area bar

Morning session and lunch Afternoon tea

 Tea, coffee and biscuits on arrival

 Limit catering to the AMM attendees and staff at 12.30pm, whilst
the stallholders are setting up

 2pm – available for all. Refreshments: cakes

Main event or speaker…..

Name Info

State of Mind State of Mind Rugby session - former rugby players showcase the session they deliver to all the top rugby league

players across the UK. The session is usually 40 minutes followed by questions. It is a light hearted but very serious

look at men and mental health and how rugby teams



Workshop Contacts – open with no ‘timeslots’. ‘Get involved’ type events based around activities for good mental health and

wellbeing and social prescribing.

Name, Organisation & Contact Feature

Workshops / activities

TOFT – Pop-up Cinema Showing the TTC film, Northern Film School, and films suggested by Tom Bailey. TV screen

– will need chairs

LENDL – iMUSE project Rose Kent – a unique interactive and immersive experience that brings about a range of

health and wellbeing benefits based around music, sound and visuals in combination with

vibrational stimulation. Used in MH and LD services. Music is the first and last memory we

maintain

CLIFFORDS - Healing Clinic Meditation and mindfulness sessions. Will bring meditation team member or Buddhists will

attend.

FISHERGATE – Christine Bates.

Leeds College of Music

Free singing workshop by Chris and info about the community module she runs, and how
this has worked within the older peoples’ wards at The Mount

STAGE - Leeds Mind Kathy Engler & James Byrne. Gender/stigma/labels, etc.

Possible…….alternate option Paul Gowland – percussion (through Converge) £50 fee plus taxi to and fro.

tbc – to speak to Nick Rowe on 21/8 to discuss if required



Hall - 12.30pm – 2.45pm.

Time to Change Leeds Photo booth to create a ‘mantage’ for website and use the postcards ‘what is masculinity in 2015’?

Open Mic Acoustic music.

Arts and Minds Service user art display

Stallholders

1 Governors - Claire Woodham 14 State of Mind

2 Voting for 2016 campaign 15 Healing Clinic – June Tranmere

3 Kathy Sturgess
Ecotherapy Project Manager

16 Continuous Improvement Team - Julia Magson

4 Adrian Clarke
Reference and Information Librarian
York Explore

17 North Yorkshire Police

Helen Skelton

5 Accessible Arts and Media - Hands

and Voice Choir. Jeff Corker and Rose Kent

18 Remploy - Nicole Moore

6 Smokefree Initiative - Pam Mareya 19 West Yorkshire Fire Service - Lisa Toner



7 Rebecca Hall
Engagement Worker
Healthwatch North Yorkshire

20 West Yorkshire Ambulance – Tasmin Ali

8 York Mind - Holly Pollard
+ Rebecca Rowan @ Kurts Club

21 Risk Management - Christine Woodward

9 York CVS / Healthwatch York Barbara Hilton

& Carol Pack

22 Compulsory Training – Dave Gaunt / Richard Helm

10 My Trust Benefits - Julia Thornhill 23 Chaplains – Melodie Kimball

11 Vale of York CCG - Daniel Blagdon 24 York Carers Centre - Sharron Smith

12 PALS/Complaints - Clare Blackburn / Susanne Smith 25 Centre for Men’s Health, Leeds Beckett – Karl Witty/Esmee

Hanna

13 Crisis and Street Triage - Adrian Elsworth 26 Community Links - Tracey Walker

28 Converge Nick Rowe tbc after 21/8

30 BARCA Harry - men at risk of suicide group – Insight

Project

Harry tbc

31 Jake Furby tbc



Time Refreshments Hall Activities
9.45am Coach arrives at Barbican from Leeds

10.00am Tea/coffee Registration in main foyer Closed Closed

10.00am Time to Change film on main stage Closed Closed

Annual Members’ Meeting
10.45am Andrew housekeeping Closed Closed

10.50am Event opened by Mrs Margaret Sentamu Closed Closed

11.00am Frank Griffiths will open and Chair the AMM

 Presentation by the Chief Executive Office – Chris Butler
 Presentation by the Director of Finance – Dawn Hanwell
 Presentation by the Lead Governor – Claire Woodham

Closed Closed

12.00pm Voting – changes to the Trust’s Constitution Closed Closed
Annual Members’ Day – all other events

12.30pm Lunch Main foyer area Open Open

2.00pm Drinks/snacks Open Open
2.45pm Hands and Voice Choir – audience participation singing and signing Closed Closed
2.55pm State of Mind Closed Closed
3.35pm Questions from the audience Closed Closed
3.50pm Thanks given by a governor Closed Closed
4.00pm Andrew Howorth – close of event Closed Closed
4.30pm Coach leaves Barbican for Leeds Closed Closed



Run Plan

Next Year’s Campaign Voting Options

1 Memory Lane A campaign focused on memory, providing a link to our older people’s services and raising the profile and
understanding of the Dementia Friendly initiatives currently underway in Leeds. The campaign can also take
look to the importance of nostalgia and the link with memories and our communities, cultures and families.
Family stories and traditions
(Keywords: Family, Dementia, Older People, Nostalgia, Friends, Connections, Memories, Dementia,
Alzheimer’s, Childhood, War, Music, Smells, Tastes).

2 The Outsiders A campaign to raise awareness and understanding of loneliness and social isolation due to disability, illness
or discrimination. Utilising membership events to work with our varied relevant clinical services and local
partners to focus on accessibility, community values and stigma. The campaign would be used to encourage
physical activity and a therapeutic use of the great outdoors for walking, socialising and recreation.
(Keywords: Isolation, being ‘different’, get outdoors, social contact,
fresh air, scenery, friendship, active, community).

3 Caring for Each
Other

A campaign encouraging care for those around you; extended family, colleagues and in your local
community, encouraging compassion and understanding of others. Working closely with our colleagues in
the community and volunteering departments to raise awareness of trust work and opportunities to get
involved in projects locally to support those nearby, in need or isolated due to age or illness.
(Keywords: Care, Community, Family, Loneliness, Volunteering,
Bonds, partnerships, values, compassion).

4 I am ME! You don’t have to know me or understand me but you have to accept me for who I am. A campaign around
being and accepting ourselves; how do we define ourselves and how do we allow others to define us? We
will be looking at diagnosis and labels, stigma and discrimination. We are more than a diagnosis. How our
circumstances define us as people and we can become lost and depersonalised. Work in partnership with
Trust projects and third sector organisations to look at being more than a label or diagnosis, celebrating
individuality.
(Keywords: acceptance, individuality, personality, labels, strength in numbers, bullying, passivity of illness,
victims, defining ourselves and others)
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The minutes for the Board of Directors, which are attached to this paper,
contain a summary of the discussion of each item and a record of any actions

executive directors to the
. This provides evidence

that the NEDs are holding the executives to account for the performance of

These are presented to the Council of Governors for information.
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LEEDS AND YORK PARTNERSHIP NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Board of Directors
held on held on Thursday 18 June 2015 at 1.00 pm

in the Wedgewood Room, Royal York Hotel, Station Road, York YO24 1AA

Board Members Apologies Voting
Members

Mr C Butler Chief Executive  

Ms J Copeland Chief Operating Officer 

Mr A Deery Interim Director of Nursing 

Mr F Griffiths Chair of the Trust 

Mrs D Hanwell Chief Financial Officer 

Dr J Isherwood Medical Director 

Mrs M Sentamu Non-executive Director 

Mrs J Tankard Non-executive Director 

Dr G Taylor Non-executive Director (Senior Independent Director) 

Prof C Thompson Non-executive Director 

Mrs S Tyler Director of Workforce Development 

Mr K Woodhouse Non-executive Director 

Mr S Wrigley-Howe Non-executive Director (Deputy Chair of the Trust) 

In attendance
Mrs C Hill Head of Corporate Governance/Trust Board Secretary (secretariat and minutes)
4 Members of the public (one of which was a member of the Council of Governors)

Action

The Chair opened the meeting at 13.30 and welcomed members of the Board of
Directors and members of the public.

15/088 Apologies for Absence (agenda item 1)

Apologies were received from Mr Butler Chief Executive, who was attending a
national event in London. It was noted that Ms Copeland, Deputy Chief
Executive, was standing in for Mr Butler.

15/089 Declaration of Change in Directors’ Interests and any Conflict of Interests
in respect of Agenda Items (agenda item 2 and agenda item 24)

No director reported a change in the interests and no director present at the
meeting declared a conflict of interest in respect of the agenda items to be
discussed.

15/090 Opportunity to Receive Comments / Questions from Members of the Public
(agenda item 3)

There were no questions from members of the public.
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15/091 Minutes of the Meeting held on 26 March 2015 (agenda item 4.1)

The meeting held on 26 March 2015 were received and agreed as a true
record.

15/092 Matters Arising (agenda item 5)

With regard to minute 15/070, Mrs Tyler provided for the Board an update on the
target for completed appraisals noting that on 16 June the compliance rate was
79.7%; however, Mrs Tyler noted that there had been a communication from
managers in the York services noting that they had carried out manual check
and reported that they had achieved a 90% compliance rate. Mrs Tyler noted
that good progress was being made and that a tremendous amount of work had
been undertaken during the recent months to reach this position.

15/093 Actions Outstanding from the Public Meetings of the Board of Directors
(agenda item 6)

Mrs Hill presented the action log which showed those actions previously agreed
by the Board at its public meetings; those that had been recently completed and
those that were still outstanding. Mrs Hill provided the Board with an update on
those items where the position had changed since the agenda papers were
circulated and invited the Board to note the actions outstanding and to be
assured of progress.

With regard to log number 159 the Board agreed that this report would come
back to the July meeting.

The Board received and noted the agreed actions from previous public
meetings that were still outstanding and discussed progress.

15/094 Bootham Park Hospital Update on Capital Work (agenda item 7)

Mrs Hanwell provided an update to the Board on the latest position in relation to
the timelines and delivery of the Bootham Park Hospital interim estates solution.
Mrs Hanwell advised the Board of the slippage on the project noting that this has
now been formally advised to the Trust by NHS Property Services and that the
expected completion date was November which is beyond the timeframe agreed
with the CQC in respect of the compliance action.

Mrs Hanwell noted that the CQC had been formally advised of the slippage. Mr
Deery updated the Board on the conversation which had taken place with the
CQC noting that they had formally requested details of the slippage, which had
been supplied, and that a response was still awaited from them.

Mr Woodhouse acknowledged that the matter was in the hands of NHS Property
Services but asked what the Trust had done to escalate this matter and ensure
that the project is delivered on time, noting that he had suggested this be done



3

in October 2014.

Mr Wrigley-Howe noted that the matter of the risks in relation to the environment
at Bootham Park Hospital were formally identified by the CQC during their initial
inspection late 2013, and indicated that in his view the Trust had done all it could
to ensure the environment was as safe as possible and that the Trust had,
through its membership of the Bootham Programme Board, done all it could to
influence the progress of works.

Mrs Hanwell assured the Board that everything within the power of the Trust had
been done to ensure the matter is expedited and that there is a clear audit trail
of the Trust’s input. Mr Woodhouse acknowledged all this work, but felt that the
Trust’s concerns could have been better progressed through the Chair or Chief
Executive and that in his view there could be insufficient evidence of the Trust
raising concerns at a very senior level about the delays. Ms Copeland noted
that the CQC is aware that the resolution of this matter is not in the hands of the
Trust. She also noted that when Mr Woodhouse had first suggested that the
matter be escalated a judgement was made that the Trust was building much
better relationships with NHS Property Services and the Vale of York CCG
locally and that escalating the matter could be detrimental to this progress at that
time.

The Board received an update report on the timescales for the delivery of the
Bootham Park interim estates solution and noted the change in

15/095 Safe Staffing April 2015 (agenda item 8)

Mr Deery presented the safe staffing report to the Board, noting in particular that
of the 36 units eight did not meet the 80% fill rate for registered nurses.

Dr Taylor asked about the recent internal audit report in respect of staffing levels
and issues around the data reported to Board, and noted that there had been no
reference to the action plan in the safer staffing report. Mr Deery agreed to bring
an update to the next Board meeting.

AD

The Board received the Safe Staffing Report and noted the content.

15/096 Complaints Summary Report April and May 2015 (agenda item 9)

Mr Deery updated the Board on progress with the new structures for the
complaints team which had been implemented to oversee the management of
complaints. Mr Deery also advised the Board that a new process for pro-actively
following up complaints with complainants to ensure that the actions taken by
the Trust have appropriately responded to the initial complaint. Mr Deery also
spoke about the work to look at the themes for complaints to better understand
some of the specific issues in the broader categories.

The Board considered the report. It was noted that one reason for delays in
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responding to complaints had been due to the capacity of operational
management. Ms Copeland explained the context for this comment, noting that
those managers who investigate and respond to complaints are the same
managers who undertake other investigations including management
investigations and serious incidents and that there may be legitimate reasons as
to why they are unable to complete an investigation within the agreed time.

The Board also agreed that to make the report more meaningful it should show
progress against targets expressed as percentages wherever possible, with
explanations provided for exceptions where targets aren’t being met. It was
also agreed that there needs to be a clearer overview of performance in order to
draw the Board’s attention to matter that need to be escalated.

Mr Deery agreed to look at the detail provided in the complaints report to capture
the comments of directors and ensure the report is more meaningful to the
Board.

Mrs Sentamu noted that some complaints had been made in respect of staff
attitudes and linked this to the Sharing Stories session earlier in the day where a
service user had spoken about staff attitudes. Mrs Sentamu highlighted the
importance of ensuring that the Trust learns from this. Mrs Tankard noted that
that learning from complaints was one area highlighted by the recent audit report
and suggested that needs to be addressed in the report.

AD

The Board received the complaints summary report and noted the content and
requested further updates be made to the report to ensure it was meaningful for
the Board.

15/097 PALS and Complaints Annual Report (agenda item 9.1)

The Board received and noted the PALS and Complaints Annual Report.

15/098 Serious Untoward Incidents update and lessons learnt following the Trust
Incident Review Group (TIRG) meeting held 13 May 2015 (agenda item 10)

Dr Isherwood presented the TIRG report drawing the Board’s attention in
particular to the cases that were behind schedule noting that the commissioners
understand and accept the reasons behind these delays.

Dr Isherwood also drew attention to the second part of the report and the
learning that had come out of the incidents investigated. Prof Thompson asked
about the use of MEWS (Modified Early Warning System) as opposed to the
newer NEWS (National Early Warning Scores). Dr Isherwood agreed to advise
Prof Thompson on this matter outside of the meeting.

Mr Wrigley-Howe asked about the comments in the report around the availability
of beds. Dr Isherwood indicated that this was something that he had requested
be looked at specifically. Ms Copeland welcomed this matter being looked at in

JI
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some detail to ensure that resources are used to the best for service users and
the variability in practice.

The Board received the TIRG report and noted the content.

15/099 Appointment of Mental Health Act Managers (agenda item 11)

The Board considered and approved the appointment of the Mental Health Act
Managers as outlined in the paper.

15/100 Changes to the Constitution (agenda item 12)

Mrs Hill outlined to the Board the proposed changes to the Constitution noting
that these are mainly in respect of the inclusion of Annex 10 and details of the
holding of Annual Members’ Meeting, and also the updated model election rules
which now allows the option of electronic voting.

Mrs Hill noted that once approved by the Board the amendments will be
presented o the Council of Governors for their consideration and that once
approved by the Council the changes will then come into effect.

Mr Wrigley-Howe asked whether the Board had taken out separate indemnity
insurance. Mrs Hill confirmed that it had.

The Board considered and approved the changes to the constitution as set out
in the paper.

15/101 Chair’s Report (agenda item 13)

Mr Griffiths noted that he had no items to report to the Board at this time.

15/102 Chief Executive’s Report (agenda item 14)

Ms Copeland provided a verbal report to the Board. She firstly spoke about the
Vale of York CCG tender outcome for mental health and learning disability
services reporting that that the Trust’s bid had scored better on quality but that
Tees Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust (TEWV) had scored better
on price, although she noted that the Trust’s financial bid was not deemed to be
abnormally high.

Ms Copeland indicated that it was very disappointing not to have been
successful especially given the strength of the bid in regard to the engagement
of clinicians and partners, and the improvements made to the services in York in
last three years.

Ms Copeland reported that the Trust has concerns about the procurement
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process and the scoring of bids and given that TEWV had won by a marginal
amount a small change to scores could have yielded a different result.

Ms Copeland indicated that any change to provider is known to cause a dip in
quality and that this change in provider compounded by the slippage on the
interim plans for Bootham, is not, in the view of the Board, seen to be in the best
interests of services users and carers. Ms Copeland reported that the Trust had
written to the CCG about these issues and met with them, but that despite
raising these concerns the CCG has now signed contract with TEWV and the
transfer of services will take effect on 1 October 2015.

Ms Copeland outlined the steps that had been taken by the Trust noting that a
letter would be sent to Monitor asking them to review the procurement process
to ensure it was fair and in the best interests of patients; that the CQC has been
advised of the delays to the Bootham Park Hospital interim estates solution and
the impact on service quality of a change of provider.

She noted that the Trust continues to work with the CCG and TEWV to ensure
there is a smooth handover and that Mrs Hanwell is leading the Demobilisation
Steering Group to oversee the change, noting in particular the important piece of
work around communicating with staff.

In summary Ms Copeland advised the Board that the Trust had submitted a very
strong bid, and asked the Board to formally acknowledge the huge amount of
work carried out by staff in the services and also by voluntary sector partners.

Mrs Hanwell outlined the timescales and procedures that Monitor will be working
to, noting that whilst a letter outlining the matter had already been sent to
Monitor a formal letter of complaint will be submitted in the following week, and
that Monitor will inform the Trust within three days of receiving this as to how
they will be taking this forward.

With regard to staff communications Mr Griffiths noted that any issues or
concerns for staff caused by a lack of communication in the stand-still period
was due to the Trust abiding by the strictures of this period. Mrs Tyler noted that
the communications plan had been circulated to all directors and she detailed
the high-level steps in the plan. She also outlined some of the concerns which
had been highlighted by the staff governors. For clarity Mrs Tyler advised the
Board that whilst the Trust has raised concerns about the tender process with
Monitor the next steps in relation to the transfer of services cannot be delayed
and must progress in accordance with a clearly set down timetable.

The Board discussed the matter of the next steps in detail the staff
communications’ plan. It was agreed that there should be a communication to
go out to staff from the Chair of the Trust on behalf of the Board.

Ms Copeland advised the Board that she, Mr Butler and Mr Griffiths had
attended the recent NHS Confederation Conference and she advised the Board
of the New models of care developing including the multi-specialty community
providers. Ms Copeland noted the successful approach to this by a trust in the
south of the country which provides physical and mental health services. Ms
Copeland noted that there are currently discussions on going with partners in the

FG
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Leeds CCGs about how to pursue this here, including structural solutions to
support integration.

Ms Copeland then outlined some of the learning to come from Scandinavia and
a recent visit to Netherlands in particular the open dialogue approach with
service users and their carers to ensure they have all the services they need and
the impact this had had on the reduction on inpatient admissions. Again Ms
Copeland outlined the discussions currently ongoing as to how this might be
achieved in Leeds.

Ms Copeland indicated that a paper will be brought back to the Board in
September which would look at these opportunities to work differently which
would also outline the resources that were needed. However, Ms Copeland
assured that Board that ahead of that paper discussions were still ongoing.
Prof Thompson asked that the Trust ensures there is an effective evaluation of
any new approaches. Dr Taylor also suggested that there is learning to be had
from the vanguard programme. Dr Taylor asked about commissioning services
for adults with learning disabilities and suggested that there could be learning
from organisations in the north west which are looking at different
commissioning models and that this could be included in the report.

JC

The Board received the verbal report and noted the update.

15/103 Draft Minutes from the Audit Committee meeting held 23 April 2015 (agenda
item 15)

The draft minutes from the Audit Committee meeting held 23 April 2015 were
received and noted.

15/104 Draft Minutes from the Audit Committee meeting held 19 May 2015 (agenda
item 16)

The draft minutes from the Audit Committee meeting held 19 May 2015 were
received and noted.

15/105 Draft Minutes from the Finance and Business Committee meeting held 23
April 2015 (agenda item 17)

It was noted that the committee had suggested there be a workshop to the
Board on the estates strategy. Mrs Hanwell supported this taking place. Mrs
Hill agreed to add this to the schedule.

DH/CH

The draft minutes from the Finance and Business Committee meeting held 23
April 2015 were received and noted.
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15/106 Draft Minutes from the Council of Governors’ meeting held 21 May 2015
(agenda item 18)

The draft minutes from the Council of Governors’ meeting held 21 May 2015
were received and noted.

15/107 Draft Minutes from the Quality Committee meeting held 16 April 2015
(agenda item 19)

The draft minutes from the Quality Committee meeting held 16 April 2015 were
received and noted.

15/108 Use of the Trust seal (agenda item 20)

The Board noted that the seal had been used on the following occasions:

14 May Log 88 Renewal of the lease for Roseville Road
21 May Log 89 St Mary’s House refurbishment
21 May Log 90 Tripartite agreement for the provision of café facilities

at the Becklin Centre
10 June Log 91 Alterations to the St Mary’s House Car Park.

The Board noted that the seal had been used on four occasions since the last
meeting.

15/109 Any Other Business (agenda item 21)

There were no items of other business.

15/110 Further Questions or Comments from the Public (agenda item 22)

Penny Fairmann noted that Steven Michael had spoken about the benefit of
vanguards and suggested that the Trust might want to speak to him about this in
relation to mental health. Ms Copeland noted that Mr Butler had already spoken
to him and other Chief Executive’s in the region around urgent care.

At the conclusion of business the Chair closed the public meeting of the Board of Directors of Leeds and
York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust at 15.00 and thanked members of the Board and members of

the public for attending.
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